BEFORE THE
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Petition to Revoke
Probation Against:

James Alfred Lemus, M.D. Case No. 800-2025-117894

Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate
No. G 42274

Respondent.

DECISION

The attached Stipulated Surrender of License and Disciplinary Order
is hereby adopted as the Decision and Order of the Medical Board of
California, Department of Consumer Affairs, State of Ca_lifornia.

This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on July 30, 2025.

IT IS SO ORDERED July 23, 2025.

MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA

Reji Varghese, Executive Director

DCUSE (Rev (7-2021}



ROB BONTA

Attorney General of California

TESSA L. HEUNIS

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

MARSHA E. BARR-FERNANDEZ

Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No. 200896
300 South Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013
Telephone: (213) 269-6249
Facsimile: (916) 731-2117
E-mail: Marsha.BarrFernandez@doj.ca.gov

Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
'MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Petition to Revoke Case No. 800-2025-117894
Probation Against:
: STIPULATED SURRENDER OF

JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, M.D. LICENSE AND DISCIPLINARY ORDER
2330 S. Atlantic Blvd.
Commerce CA 90040-1202

Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate
No. G 42274,

Respondent.

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

entitled proceedings that the following matters are true:
PARTIES

1.  Reji Varghese (Complainant) is the Executive Director of the Medical Board of
California (Board). He brought this action solely in his official capacity and is represented in this
matter by Rob Bonta, Attorney General of the State of California, by Marsha E. Barr-Fernandez,
Deputy Attorney General.

2. James Alfred Lemus, M.D. (Respondent) is representing himself in this proceeding
and has chosen not to exercise his right to be represented by counsel.
1
i
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3. Onor about July 1, 1980, the Board issued Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No.
G 42274 to Respondent. That license was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the
chargeAs brought in Petition to Revoke Probation No. 800-2025-117894 but expired on September
30, 2023, and has not been renewed.

JURISDICTION

4. Onluly 1, 2025, Petition to Revoke Probation No. 800-2025-117894 was filed before
the Board and is currently pending against Respondent. A true and correct copy of the Petition to
Revoke Probation and all other statutorily required documents were properly served on
Respondent on July 1, 2025.

5. A true and correct copy of Petition to Revoke Probation No. 800-2025-117894 is
attached as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference.

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

6. Respondent has carefully read and fully understands the charges and allegations in
Petition to Revoke Probation No. 800-2025-117894. Respondent also has carefully read and fully
understands the effects of this Stipulated Surrefnder of License and Disciplinary Order.

7. Respondent is fully aware of his legal rights in this matter, including the right to a
hearing on the charges and allegations in the Petition to Revoke Probation; the right to be
represented by counsel, at his own expense; the right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses
against him; the right to present evidence and to testify on his own behalf; the right to the
issuance of subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents;
the right to reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded
by the California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws.

8.  Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intel-lig'ently waives and gives up each and
every right set forth above.

1
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CULPABILITY

9.  Respondent admits the truth of each and every charge and allegation in Petition to
Revoke Probation No. 800-2025-117894, agrees that cause exists for discipline and hereby
surrenders his Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. G 42274 for the Board's formal
acceptance.

10. Respondent understands that by signing this stipulation he enables the Board to issue
an order accepting the surrender of his Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate without further
process.

CONTINGENCY

11. Business and Professions Code section 2224, subdivision (b), provides, in pertinent
part, that the Mgdical Board “shall delegate to its executive director the authority to adopta ...
stipulation for surrender of a license.”

12. Respondent understands that, by signing this stipulation, he enables the Executive
Director of the Board to issue an order, on behalf of the Board, accepting the surrender of his
Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. G 42274 without further notice to, or opportunity to be
heard by, Respondent.

13. This Stipulated Surrender of License and Disciplinary Order shail be subject to the
approval of the Executive Director on behalf of the Board. The parties agree that this Stipulated
Surrender of License and Disciplinary Order shall be submitted to the Executive Director for his
consideration in the above-entitled matter and, further, that the Executive Director shall have a
reasonable period of time in which to consider and act on this Stipulated Surrender of License and
Disciplinary Order after receiving it. By signing this stipulation, Respondent fully understands
and agrees that he may not withdraw his agreement or seek to rescind this stipulation prior to the
time the Executive Director, on behalf of the Medical Board, considers and acts upon it.

14. The. parties agree that this Stipulated Surrender of License and Disciplinary Order
shall be null and void and not binding upon the parties unless approved and adopted by the
Executive Director on behalf of the Board, except for this paragraph, which shall remain in full

force and effect. Respondent fully understands and agrees that in deciding whether or not to

3
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approve and adopt this Stipulated Surrender of License and Disciplinary Order, the Executive
Director and/or the Board may receive oral and written communications from its staff and/or the
Attorney General’s Office. Communications pursuant to this paragraph shall not disqualify the
Executive Director, the Board, any member thereof, and/or any other person from future
participation in this or any other matter affecting or involving respohdent. In the event that the
Executive Director on behalf of the Board does not, in his discretion, approve and adopt this
Stipulated Surrender of License and Disciplinary Order, with the exception of this paragraph, it
shall not become effective, shall be of no evidentiary value whatsoever, and shall not be relied
upon or introduced in any disciplinary action by either party hereto. Respondent further agrees
that should this Stipulated Surrender of License and Disciplinary Order be rejected for ény reason
by the Executive Director on behalf of the Board, Respondent will assert no claim that the
Executive Director, the Board, or any member thereof, was prejudiced by its/his/her review,
discussion and/or consideration of this Stipulated Surrender of License and Disciplinary Order or
of any matter or matters related hereto.

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

15. This Stipulated Surrender of License and Disciplinary Order is intended by the parties
herein to be an integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of
the agreements of the parties in the above-entitled matter.

16. The parties agree that copies of this Stipulated Surrender of License and Disciplinary
Order, including copies of the signatures of the parties, may be used in lieu of original documents
and signatures and, further, that such copies shall have the same force and effect as originals.

17. In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree the
Executive Director of the Board may, without further notice to or opportunity to be heard by
Respondent, issue and enter the following Disciplinary Order on behalf of the Board:

"
"
"
n
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ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. G 42274, issued
to Respondent JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, M.D., is surrendered and accepted by the Board.

1.  The surrender of Respondent’s Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate and the
acceptance of the surrendered license by the Board shall constitute the imposition of discipline
against Respondent. This stipulation constitutes a record of the discipline and shall become a part
of Respondent’s license history with the Board.

2. Respondent shall lose all rights and privileges as a Physician and Surgeon in
California as of the effective date of the Board's Decision and Order.

3.  Respondent shall cause to be delivered to the Board his pocket license and, if one was
issued, his wall certificate on or before the effective date of the Decision and Order.

4.  If Respondent ever files an application for licensure or a petition for reinstatement in
the State of California, the Board shall treat it as a petition for reinstatement. Respondent must
comply with all the laws, regulations, and procedures for reinstatement of a revoked or
surrendered license in effect at the time the petition is filed, and all of the charges and allegations
contained in Petition to Revoke Probation No. 800-2025-117894 shall be deemed to be true,
correct and admitted by Respondent when the Board determines whether to grant or deny the
petition.

5. If Reépondent should ever apply or reapply for a new license or certification, or
petition for reinstatement of a license, by any other health care licensing agency in the State of
California, all of the charges and allegations contained in Petition to Revoke Probation No. 800-
2025-117894 shall be deemed to be true, correct, and admitted by Respondent for the purpose of
any Statement of Issues or any other proceeding seeking to deny or restrict licensure.

6.  Respondent shall pay the agency its costs of investigation and enforcement in the
amount of $6,027.00 prior to issuance of a new or reinstated license.

n |
1
"
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ACCEPTANCE

J

I have carefully read the Stipulated Surrender of License and Disciplinary Order. 1 fully

understand the stipulatio’h. and the efféct it will have on miy Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate

No. G 42274. 1 enter into this Stipulated Surrender of License and Disciplinary Order
voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound by the Decision and Order of the

Medical Board. of California.

Bl

owies ezl s

8 ALFRED LEMUS M.D”
Vespond_ent

" ENDORSEMENT
The foregoing Stipulated Surrender of License and Disciplinary Order is hereby:
respectfully submitted for consideration by the Medical Board of California of the Department of

Consurner Affairs.

DATED: July 9, 2025 Respectfully submitted,

ROB-BONTA

Attorney General of California.
TESSA L, HEUNIS

Stpervising Deputy Attorney. General

Mnce

MARSHA E. BARR-FERNANDEZ
Deputy Attorney:General .
Attorneys for Complainant

LA2025602265

6 _
Stipulated Surrender of License and Disciplinary Order(Case No. 800-2025-117894)




Exhibit A

Petition to Revoke Probation No. 800-2025-117894



o (=] ~ N W +~ w 5. — .

T S T T C R C U C S T S ;
» I 8 B R VP REB LS 2 9 a5 8 &5 o o o

RoB BONTA
Attorney General of California
TESSA L. HEUNIS
Supervising Deputy Attorney Genetal
MARSHA E. BARR-FERNANDEZ
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 200896
" 300 South Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013
Telephone: (213) 269-6249
Facsimile: (916) 731-2117
E-mail: Marsha.BarrFernandez@doj.ca.gov
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALI_FORNIA
In the Matter of the Petition to Revoke Case No. 800-2025-117894
Probation Against: ,
PETITION TO REVOKE PROBATION
JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, M.D.
2330 S. Atlantic Blvd.

Commerce, CA 90040-1202

Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate
No. G 42274,

Respondent.

Complainant alleges:
PARTIES

1.  Reji Varghese (Complainant) brings this Petition to Revoke Probation solely in his
official capacity as the Executive Director of the Medical Board of California, Depaftment of
Consumer Affairs (Board). _

2. Onor about July 1, 1980, the Board issued Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No.
G 42274 to James Alfred Lemus, M.D. (Respondent). The Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate
was in effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and expired on September 30,
2023, and is in delinquent status.
H
I
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3. Inadisciplinary action titled "In the Matter of the Accusation Against James Alfred

Lemus, M.D.," Case No. 11-2011-218741, the Medical Board of California, issued a decision,

effective February 8, 2013, in which Respondent's Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate was
revoked. However, the revocation was stayed, and Respondent's Physician's and Surgeon's
Certificate was placed on probation for a period of seven (7) years with certain terms and

conditions. A copy of that decision is attached as Exhibit A and is incorporated by reference.

4.  Inadisciplinary action titled "In the Matter of the Accusation and Petition to Revoke

Probation Against James Alfred Lemus, M.D.," Case No. 800-2017-030624, the Medical Board

of California issued a decision, effective April 26,2019, in which the term of seven years of

probation imposed byIDecision and Order in Case No. 11-2011-218741, effective February 8,
2013, was extended for one additional year, for a total of eight years from Februafy 8,2013. A
copy of that decision is attached as Exhibit B and is incorporated by reference.

JURISDICTION

5. This Petition to Revoke Probation is brought before the Board under the authority of -

the following laws. All section references are to the Business and Professions Code unless

otherwise indicated.

6. Section 2004 of the Code states;

The board shall have the responsibility for the following:

(a) The enforcement of the disciplinary and criminal provisions of the Medical
Practice Act.

(b) The administration and hearing of disciplinary actions.

(c) Carrying out disciplinary actions appropriate to findings made by a panel or
an administrative Jaw judge.

(d) Suspending, revoking, ot otherwise limiting certificates after the conclusion
of disciplinary actions.

(e) Reviewing the quality of medical p-ractice carried out by physician and
surgeon certificate holders under the jurisdiction of the board.

() Approving undergraduate and graduate medical education programs.
(g8) Approving clinical clerkship and special progfams and hospitals for the
programs in subdivision (f).

n
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(h) Issuing licenses and certificates under the board’s jurisdiction.

(i) Administering the board’s continuing medical education program.

7.  Section 2227 of the Code states:; B

(a) A licensee whose matter has been heard by an administrative law judge of
the Medical Quality Hearing Panel as designated in Section 11371 of the Government
Code; or whose default has been entered, and who is found guilty, or who has entered
into a stipulation for disciplinary action with the board, may, in accordance with the
provisions of this chapter:

(1) Have his or her license revoked upon order of the board.

(2) Have his or her right to practice suspended for a period not to exceed one
year upon order of the board. - '

(3) Be placed on probation and be required to pay the costs of probation
monitoring upon order of the board.

(4) Be publicly reprimanded by the board. The public.reprimand may include a
requirement that the licensee complete relevant educational courses approved by the
board, :

(5) Have any other action taken in relation to discipline as part of an ordet of
probation, as the board or an administrative law judge may deem proper.

(b) Any matter heard pursuant to subdivision (a), except for warning letters,
medical review or advisory conferences, professional competency examinations, |
continuing education activities, and cost reimbursement associated therewith that are
agreed to with the board and successfully completed by the licensee, or other maiters
made confidential or privileged by existing law, is deemed public, and shall be made
available to the public by the board pursuant to Section 803.1.

FIRST CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION

{(Non-Practice While.on Probation)

8.  Atall times after the effective date of Respondent's probation, Condition 9 stated:

. Respondent shall notify the Board or its designee in writing within 15 calendar days
of any periods of non-practice lasting more than 30 calendar days and within 15 calendar
days of Respondent’s return to practice. Non-practice is defined as any period of time
Respondent is not practicing medicine in California as defined in Business and Professions

Code sections 2051 and 2052 for at least 40 hours in a calendar month in direct patient care,

clinical activity or teaching, or other activity as approved by the Board. All time spent in an
intensive training program which has been approved by the Board or its designee shall not
be considered non-practice. Practicing medicine in another state of the United States or
Federal jurisdiction while on probation with the medical licensing authority of that state or
jurisdiction shall not be considered non-practice. A Board-ordered suspension of practice
shall not be considered as a period of non-practice.

L33
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Respondent’s period of non-practice while on probation shall not exceed two (2)

years.

Periods of non-practice will not apply to the reduction of the probationary term.
Periods of non-practice will relieve Respondent of the responsibility to comply with
the probationary terms and conditions with the exception of this condition and the
following terms and conditions of probation: Obey All Laws; and General Probation
Requirements.
9.  Respondent James Alfred Lemus, M.D.’s probation is subject to revocation because

he failed to comply with Probation Condition 9, referenced above. The facts and circumstances

regarding this
a)

b)

d)

violation are as follows: _

On or about November 7, 2019, a Quarter I'V 2019 _interview was scheduled to be
conducted at Respondent’s office. Upen the probation inspector’s arrival, the
inspector was informed by Responder_lt’s‘ office staff that Respondent was in the
hdspital.

On 'or about December 17, 2019, the probation inspector emailed Respondent
requesting to schedule a phone interview. ResPoﬁdent did not respond.

On or about December 31, 2019, the probation inspector left a voicemail for
Respondéﬁt asking for a return call. On that same date, the probation inspeétor
also called Respondent’s office and was informed by a member ofi Respondent’s
office staff that Respondent had undergone a surgical procedure on December 30,
2019, and was still in the hospital.

On or about May 30, 2020, Respondent notified the probation department that
Respondent had stopped practicing medicine on December 30, 2019.

On or about February 21, 2023, Respondent submitted a Voluntary Request for
Surrender to the Board. The surrender was referred to the Board’s Discipline
Coordination Unit for processing and an Agreement for Surrender was transmitted
to Respondent for signature. Respondent did not sign and return the Agreement
for Surrender to the Board.

As of ’ghe filing of the instant Petition to Revole Probation, Respondent has not

returned to the practice of medicine.

4
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10. As of November 7, 2021, Respondent has not practiced medicine in California for at
least 40 hours in a calendar month in direct patient care, clinical activity or teaching, or other

activity as approved by the Board. Accordingly, Respondent’s period of non-practice exceeded

_two years, in violation of Probation Condition 9.

SECOND CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION
(General Probation Requirements: Maintain a Current and Renewed License)
11.  Atall times after the effective date of Respondent's probation, Condition '7 stated in
pertinent part, as follows:

Respondent shall maintain a current and renewed Callforma physician's and surgeon's
license.

12. Respondent James Alfred Lemus, M.D.'s probation is subject to revocation because
he failed to complly with Probation Condition 7, referenced above, The facts and circumstances
regarding this violation are as follows:

a) Respondent’s Physician’s and Surgeon’s License No. G 42274 expired on
September 30, 2023, and is in delinquent statﬁs.
b) Respondent has not renewed his Physician’s and Surgeon’s License No. G 42274.

13. Inlight of Respondent’s failure to renew his Physician’s and Surgeon’s License No.
G 42274, Respondent has failed to maintain a current and renewed California physician’s and
surgeon’s license in violation of Probation Condition 7.

PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that é. hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Medical Board of California issue a decision:

1. Reyoking the probation that was granted by the Medical Board of California in Case
No. 11-2011-218741 and imposing the disciplinary order that was stayed thereby revoking
Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. G 42274 issued to Respondent James Alfred Lemus,
M.D.;

2. Revoking or suspending Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. G 42274, issued to
Respondent James Alfred Lemus, M.D.;

5
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3. Revoking, suspending, or denying approval of Respondent James Alfred Lemus,
M.D.'s authority to supervise physician assistants and advanced practice nurses;

4, Ordefing Respondent James Alfred Lemus, M.D. to pay the Medical Board of
California, if placed on probation, the costs of probation monitoring; and

5.  Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

patep:  JUL 0 72025 Marbope Smi# For
REJI VARGHESE

Executive Director

Medical Board of California
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California

Complainant

LA2025602265
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BEFORE THE
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNLA

In the Matter of the Accusation =~ )
Against: )
)
_ )

JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, M.I. ) Case No. 11-2011-21874%
‘ )
Physician's and Surgeon's )
Certificate No. G-42274 )
)
Respondent )
)

DECESION

The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is’hereby adopted as the
Decision and Order of the Medical Board of California, Department of Consumer Affairs,

State of California.
This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on February §, 2013,

IT IS SO ORDERED: January 9, 2013.

MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA

Jarbara Yaroslavsiy, €hair
Panel A :




1 || KAMALA D. HARRIS

- Attorney General of California

2 || ROBERTMCKIM BELL :
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
3 PEGGIE BRADFORD TARWATER
Deputy Attorney General

4 || State Bar No. 169127
California Department of Justice
5 300 S. Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013
6 Telephone: (213) 620-6068
Facsimile: (213) 897-9395
7 || Attorneys for Complainant
8 ‘ BEFORE THE :
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
9 DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
] STATE OF CALIFORNIA
0
11 || In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 11-2011-218741
12 || JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, M.D. OAH No. 2012090231
5020 East Washington Boulevard _
13 || City of Commerce, California 90040 STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND
DISCIPLINARY ORDER
14 || Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. G
42274 ‘
15 _
Respondent.
16
17
18 IT 1S HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

19 || entitled proceedings that the following matters are true:

20 PARTIES
21 1. . Linda K. Whitney (Complainant) is the Executive Director of the Medical Board of

22 || California, Department of Consumer Affairs (Board). She brought this action solely in her

23 || official capacity and is represented in this matter by Kamala D. Harris, Attorney General of the
24 || State of California, by Peggie Bradford Tarwater, Deputy Attorﬁey.General.

25 2. Respondent James Alfred Lemus, M.D. (Respondent) is represented in this

26 || proceeding by atiorney Thomas R. Bradford, Esq., whose address is 100 North First Street, Suite
27 || 300, Burbank, California 91502 ‘

28
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3. Onorabout July 1, 1980, the Medical Board of California issued Physician's and
Surgeon's Certificate No. G 42274 to James Alfred Lemus, M.D. (Resbondent). The Physician's
and S urgeon's Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought
in Accusation No. 11-2011-218741 and will expire on September-30, 2013, unless renewed,

JURISDICTION

4. Accusation No. 11-201 1-218741 was filed before the Medical Board of California
(Bdard), Department of Consumer Affairs, and is currently pending against Respondent, The
Accusation and all _other statutorily required documents were properly served on Respondent on
July 24, 2012. Respondent timely filed his Notice of Defense contesting the Accusation.

5. A copy of Accusation No. 11-2011-218741 is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated

herein by reference,

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

6.  Respondent has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the
charges and allegations in Accusation No, 11-2011-218741. Respondent has also carefully read,
fully discussed with counsel, and understands the effects of this Stipillated Settlement and
Disciplinary Order.

7. Respondent is fully aware of his legal rights in this matter, including the right to a
hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by counsel at
his own expense; the right to confront and cross-cxamine the witnesses against him; the right to
present evidence and to testify on his own behalf; the right 1o the issuance of subpoenas to compel
the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents; the right to reconsideration and
court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the Califomia '
Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws.

8. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up ea;;h and
every right set forth above.

11
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CULPABILITY

9.  Respondent admits the truth of each and every charge and all;:gation in Accusation
No. 11-2011-218741.

10. Respopdent agrees that his Physiciem‘s'aud Surgeon's Certificate is subject to
discipline and he agrees to be bound by the Board's probationary terms s set forth in the-
Disc;iplinary Order below.

RESERVATION

11. The admissions made by Respondent herein are only for the purposes of this

-proceeding, or any other proceedings in which the Medical Board of California or other

professional licensing agency is involved, and shall not be admissible in any other criminal or

| civil proceeding,

CONTINGENCY

12, This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Medical Board of California.
Respondent understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and thie staff of the Medical
Board of California may communicate directly with the Board regarding this stipulation and
settlement, without notice to or participation by Respondent or his counsel. By signing the
stipulation, Respondent understands and agrees that he may not withdraw his agreement or seek
to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the Board considers and acts upon it. If the Board fails
to adopt this stipulation as its Decision and Order, the Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
Order shall be of no force or effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal
action between the parties, and the Board shall not be disqualified from further action by having
cpnsidered this matter.

13.  The partics understand and agree that facsimile copies of this Stipulated Settlement
and Disciplinary Order, including facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same force and
effect as the ori ginaﬂs. . '

14. In consideration of the foregoing adinissions and stipulations, the parties égree that

the Board may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following

Disciplinary Order:

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (11-2011-218741)




initial enrollment, and the longitudinal component of the program not later than the time specified

DISCIPLINARY ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No, G 42274 issued
to Respondent James Alf:red Lemus, M.D. (Respondent) is revoked. However, the revocation is
stayed and Respondent is placed on probation for seven years on the following terms and

conditions.

1.  ACTUAL SUSPENSION. As part of probation, Respondent is suspended from the

practice of medicine for 30 days. Days sﬁent in custody as a result of Respondent’s commitment
to the Bureau of Prisons in United States District Courf, Central District of California, Case
Number CR11-00181-MMM may be credited to meet the 30—&ay requirement.

2. COMMUNITY SERVICE - FREE SERVICES. Within 60 calendar days of the

effective date of this Decision, Respondent shall submit to the Board or its designee for prior
approval a community service plan in which Respondent shall within the first three years of
pfobation, provide 300 houfs of free services (e.g., medical or nonmedical) to a community or
non-profit organization. Prior to engaging in any'community service, Respondent shall provide a
true copy of the Decision(s) to the chief of staff, director, office manager, program manager,
officer, or the chief execltive officer at every community or non-profit organization where
Respondent provides community service and shall submit proof of compliance to the Board or its
designee within 15 calendar days. This condition shall also apply to any change(s) in community
service.

Community service performed prior to the effective date of the Decision shall not be

accepted in fulfillment of this.condition.

3, PROFESSIONALISM PROGRAM (ETHICS COURSE). Within 60 calendar days of!

the effective date of this Decision, Respondent shall enroll in a professionalism program, that
meets the requirements of T it__le 16, California Code of Regulations section 1358, Respondent
shall participate in and successfully complete that program. Respondent shall provide any
information and documents that the program may deem pertinent. Respondent shall successfully

complete the classroom component of the program not later than six months after Respondent’s

4
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by the program, but no later than one year after attending the classroom component. The
professiohalisfn program shall be at Respondent’s expense and shall be in addition to the
Coﬁtinuing Medical Education requirements for renewal of licensure.

A professionalism program taken after the acts that gave rise to the charges in'the
Accusation, but prior to the effective date of the Decision may, in the sole discretion of the Board
or its designee, be accepted towards the fulfillment of this condition if the program would have
been appx'oxfed by the Board or its designee had the program been taken after the effective date of
this Decision.

Respondent shall submit a certification of successful completion to the Board or its
designee not later than 15 calendar days after successfully completing the program or not later
than 15 calendar days after the effective date of the Dccision, whichever is later,

4,  NOTIFICATION. Within seven days of the effective date of this Decision,
Respondent shall provide a true copy of this Decision and Accusation to the Chief of Staff or the
Chief Executive Qfﬁcer at every hospital where privileges or lnembership are extended to
Respondent, at any other facility where Respondent engages in the practice of medicine,
including all physician and locum tenens registries or other similar agencies, and to the Chief
Executive Officer at every insurance carrier which extends malpractice insurance coverage to
Respondent, Respondent shall submit proof of compliance to the Board or its designee within 15
calendar days.

This condition shall apply to any change(s) in hospitals, other facilities or insurance carrier.

5, OBEY ALL LAWS. Respondent shall obey all federal, state and local laws, all rules

governing the practice of medicine in California and remain in foll compliance with any court
ordered criminal probation, payments, and other orders.

6. OUARTERLY DECLARATIONS. Respondent shall submit quarterly declarations

under penalty of perjury on forms provided by the Board, stating whether there has been
compliance with all the conditions of probation.
Respondent shall submit quarterly declarations not later than 10 calendar days afler the end

of the preceding quarter.

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (11-2011-218741)
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7. GENERAL PROBATION REQUIREMENTS,
Compliance with Probation Unit

Respondent shall comply with the Board’s probation unit and all terms and conditions of

this Decision.

Address Changes

Respondent shall, at all times, keep the Board informed of Respondent’s business é.nd
residence addresses, email address (if available), and telephone number. Changes of such
addresses shall be immed.iately communicated in writing to the Board or its designee. Under no
circumstances shall a post office box serve as an address of record, except as allowed by Business
and Professions Code section 2021(b).

Place of Practice

Respondent shail not engage in the practice of medicine in Respondent’s or patient’s place
of residence, unless the patient resides in a skilled nursing facility or other similar licensed
facility.

License Renewal

Respondent shall maintain a current and renewed California physician’s and surgeon’s
license.

Travel or Residence Qutside California

Respondent shall immediately inform the Board or its designee, in writing, of travel to any
areas outside the jurisdiction of California which lasts, or is contemplated to last, more than thirty
calendar days.

In the event Respondent should leave the State of California to reside or to practice
Respondent shall notify the Board or its designee in writing 30 calendar days prior to the dates of

departure and return.

8. INTERVIEW WITH THE BOARD OR ITS DESIGNEE. Respondent shall be

available in person upon request for interviews either at Respondent’s place of business or at the
p p

probation unit office, with or without prior notice throughout the term of probation,

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (11-2011-218741)




9. NON~PRACTICE WHILE ON PROBATION. Respondent shall notify the Board or

its designee in writing within 15 calendar days of any periods of nqn-practicc lasting more than
30 calendar days and within 15 calendar days of Respondent’s return to practice. Non-practice is
defined as any period of time Respondent is not practicing medicine in California as defined in
Business and Professions Code sections 2051 and 2052 for at least 40 hours in a calendar month
in direct patient care, clinical activity or téaching, or other activity as approved by the Board. All
time spent in an intensive training program which has been approved by the Board or its designee
shall not be considéred non-practice. Practicing medicine in another state of the United States or
Federal jurisdiction while on probation with the medical licensing authority of that state or
jﬁn’sdiction shall not be considered non-practice. A Board-ordered suspension of practice shall
not be considered as a period of non-practice.

In the event Respondent’s period of non-practice while on prbbatjpn exceeds 18 calendar
months, Respondent shéll successfully complete a clinical training program that meets the criteria
of Condition 18 of the current version of the Board’s “Manual of Model Disciplinary Orders and
Disciplinary Guidelinés” prior to resuming the practice of medicine.

Respondent’s period of non-practice while on probation shall not exceed two (2) years.

Periods of non-practice will not apply to the reduction of the probationary term. .

Periods of non-practice will telieve Respondent of the responsibility to comply with the
probationary terms and conditions with the exception of this condition and the following terms
and conditions of probation: Obey All Laws; and General Probatibn Requirements.

10. COMPLETION OF PROBATION. Respondent shall comply with all financial

obligations (e.g., restitution, probation costs) not later than 120 calendar days prior to the
completion of probation. Upon successful completion of probation, Respondent’s certificate shall

be fully restored. |
11. ~ VIOLATION OF PROBATION. Failure to fully comply with any term or condition

of probation is a violation of probation. If Respondent violates probation in any respect, the
Board, after giving Respondent notice and the opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and
catry out the disciplinary order that was stayed. If an Accusation, or Petition to Revoke

7

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (11-2011-218741)




D

O 00 3 &

10

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Probation, or an Interim Suspension Order is filed against Respondent during probation, the
Board shall have continuing jurisdiction until the matter is final, and the period of probation shall
be extendéd until the matter is final. |

12. LICENSE SURRENDER. Following the effective date of this Decision, if
Respondent ceases practiciﬁg due to retirement or health reasons or is otherwise unable 1o satisfy
the terms and conditions of probation, Respondent may request to surrender his or her license.
The Board reserves the right to evaluate Respondellf’s request and to exercise its discretioﬁ in
determining whether or not to grant the request, or to take any other action deemed appropriate
and reasonable under the circumstances, Upon formal acceptance of the surrendef, Réspondem
shall within -15 calendar days deliver Respondént’s wallet and wall certificate to the Board or its
designee and Respohdcnt shall no longer practice medicine. Respondent will no longer be subject
to the terms and conditions of probation. If Respondent re-applies for a medical license, the
application shall be treated as a petition for reinstatement of a revoked certificate,

" 13. PROBATION MONITORING COSTS. Respondent shall pay the costs associated

with prébatio_n monitoring each and every year of probation, as designated by the Board, which
may be adjusted on an annual basis. Such co'sts shall be payable to the Medical Board of
California and delivered to the Board or its designee no later than January 31 of each calendar
year.
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1 approve its form and content,

_ ACCEPTANCE
1 have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and have fully
discussed it with my attorney, Thomas R, Bradford, Esq. Iunderstand the stipulation and the

effect it will have on my Physiclan’s and Surgeon's _Certiﬁcate. 1 enter into this Stipulated

| Settlement and Disciplinary Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be

bound by the Decision and Order of the Medical Board of California,

 DATED: %,/é//.zl/ QW%W”;—)

TAMESALFRED LEM&S, M.D.
Respondent -

I have read and fully discussed with Respondent James Alfred Lernus, M.D. the terms and

conditions and other matiers co;

ed Settlement and Disciplinary Order.

DATED:  /1/¢ [z MNAAL
- ’ ~Thomag\R. Bradford, Esq.
Attom@l}or Respondent
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ENDORSEMENT
The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully

submitted for consideration by the Medical Board of California of the Department of Consumer

Affairs.

Dated: // A‘:/’/% Respectfully submitied,
ST,

KAMALA D. HARRIS

Attorney General of California

ROBERT MCKIM BELL

Supefvising Deputy Attorney General
o

. o

/ St dor2 S
PEGGIE BRADFORD TARWATER-
Deputy Attomney General

Attorneys for Complainant

LA2012604115
60867964.doc
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STATE OE%ED
ALIFO
MEDICAL BOARD OF cﬁ'?'riﬁnm
KAMALA D. HARRIS SB‘:‘,CRAME TO _Ayikyy D)
Atlorney General of California ‘ b
ROBERT MCKIM BELL NALYST
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
PEGGIE BRADFORD TARWATER
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 169127
California Department of Justice
300 South Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013
Telephone: (213) 620-6068
Facsimile: (213) 897-9395
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 11-2011-218741
JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, M.D. |
5020 East Washington Boulevard
City of Commerce, California 90040 - ACCUSATION
Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. G
42274,

A Respondent.
Complainant alleges:
PARTIES

1.  Linda K. Whitney (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity
as the Executive Directar of the Medical Board of California, Department of Consumer Affairs
(Board).

2. On or about July 1, 1980, the Medical Board of California issued Physician's and
Surgeon's Certificate number G 42274 1o Tames Alfred Lemus, M.D. (Respondent) The
Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the

charges brought herein and will expire on September 30, 2013, unless renewed,

1
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JURISDICTION

3. This Accusation is brought before the Board under the authority of the following
laws.

4.  Business and Professions Code section 2227" provides that a licensee who is found
guilty under the Medical Practice Act may have his or her license revoked, suspended for a period
not 1o exceed one year, placed on probation and required to pay the costs of probalion moniloring,
or such other action taken in relation to discipline as the Board deems proper.

5. Section 2234 of the Code states: |

"The board silall take aclion agains! any licensee who is cfmrged with unprofessional
conduct. In addition io other provisions of this article, unprofessional conduct includes, but is not
limited to, the following:

"(a) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, assisting in or abetting the
violation of, or conspiring to violate any provision of this chapter [Chapter 5, the Medical

Practice Act].

"(e) The commission of any act involving dishonesty or 'comlption which is substantially
related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of 2 physician gmd surgeon.
| "(f) Any action or conduct which would have warranted the denial of a certificate.”
6. Section 2236 of the Code states: ' |
“(a) The conviction of any offense substantially related to the qualifications, fﬁnctions, or
duties of a physician and surgeon constitutes unprofessional conduct within the meaning of this
chapter [Chapler 5, the Medical Practice Act]. The record of conviction shall be conclusive

evidence only of the fact that the conviction occurred.

1 All statutory references are to the Business and Professions Code, unless otherwise
indicated. '

X
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“(d) A plea or verdict of guilly or a conviction after a plea of nolo contendere is deemed Lo
be a conviclion within the meaning of this section and Scdion 2236.1. The .record of conviction
shall be conclusive evidence of the fact that the conviction occurred.” 4

7. Calilornia Code of Regulations, litle 16, section 1360, stales:

“For the purposes of denial, suspension or revocation of 4 license, certificate or permil
pursuant Lo Division 1.5 (co111m¢xxci1)g wilh Scction 475) of the code, a crime or act shall be
considered 10 be substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of & person holding
a license, certificate or permit under the Medical Practice Act il 1o a substantial degree il
evidences present or potential unfitness of a person hold'mg a license, cerlificate or permil o
perform the functions authorized by the license, certificale or permit in 4 manner consistent with
the public health, safety or welfare, Such crimes or acts shall include but not be limited 1o the
following: Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or abetting the
violation of, or conspiring to violate any provision of the Medical Practice Acl.”

8. Title 26, United States Code, section 7201 provides: .

“Any person who willfully attempts in any manner to évade or defeat any tax imposed by
this title or the payment thereof shall, in addition to other penalties provided by law, be guilty of a
felony and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined not more than $100,000 ($500,000 in the case
of a corporation), or imprisoned not more than 5 years, or both, together with the costs of
prosecution.”

CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Conviction of a Crime) _

0, Resporidem is subject to disciplinary aclion under section 2227, 2234, and 2236 and
California Code of Regulations, Litle 16, section 1360, in that he was convicted of attempling to
evade or defeal payment of income fax in violati:Lm of 26 United States Code section 7201. The
circumstances are as follows: .

10. " During the 2003 tax year, Respondent owned and operaled I emus Medical Clinic

(LMC), in Commerce, California. During that time period, LMC provided physicals and drug

(&3]
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lesting to truck drivers as required by the Depariment of Transportation. Respondent required
most of those truck drivers (.o pay lor the testing in cush. In 20()3, Respondent received
approsimately $88,663 in cash from performing these drug tests. However, in order to conceal
the cash receipts from the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS™). Respondent knowingly failed 1o
report that cash 1o the IRS.

“11. Respondent knew thal he had received substantial taxable income during 2003,
namely $88,663 in cash, and that he was required to file a United States Individual Tax Return,
Form 1040, reporting his taxable income, including the cash he received, and pay the ta)-\'es that
were due. Respondent willfully attempled to evade and defeat the assessment and puyment of
such tax by willfully failing to report the cash he received on his 2003 Federal lncdme Tax
Return. |

12.. Reéspondent acled for the purpose of evading his duties under the tax laws and not as a
result of accident or negligence. Respondent’s actioné resulted in an additional tax due and
owing to the IRS of $20,626 for 2003. _

13 On or about March 2, 2011, in United States District Court, Central District of
California, Case Number CR11-00181-MMM, an Information was filed chérging Respondent
with attempting tb evade or defeat payment of income tax in violation of 26 Unit.cd States Code
section 7201.

14. On or about March 2, 2011, a plea agreement was filed in which Respondent pled
guilty to the charge as set forth in the Information.

15. On or about Oclober 24, 2011, Respondent was sentenced. The terms and conditions
included the following: one-month commilment 1o the Bureau of Pr.isohs; supervised release for a
period of three years, with nine months in a home detention program; filing and payment of taxes
owed for 2003 through 2007; and additional fees and penalties.

16. Respondent’s conduct, as set forth in paragraphs 9 through 15 constitutes the
conviction of a crime, substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a physician,

pursuant to section 2236 of the Code. Therefore cause for discipline exists.

Accusalion
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PRAYER

WHEREFORE,. Complainant requests that a hearing be held un the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Medical Board of California issue # decision:

1. Revoking or suspending Physiciaﬁ 's and Surgeon's Certificate Numbcr G 42274,
issued to James Alfred Lemus, M.D.;

2. Revoking, suspending of denying upproval of his authority Lo supervise physician's
assistants, pursuani (o sectioh 3527 of the Code;

3. If he is placed on probation, ordering him 10'pay.thc Medical Board of California the
costs of probation monitoring;

4.  Taking such other and further action as deemed necesgary and proper.

7 ,.
DATED; _ July 24, 2012 /e

LINDA K. WHITNE
Executive Director
Medical Board of

Department of Gonsumer Affairs
State of California
Complainant
LA2012604115
q
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BEFORE T HE
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation and )
Petition to Revoke Probation Against: )
)

JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, M.D. ) Case No, 800-2017-030624
- ‘ )
Physician's and Surgeon's )
Certificate No. G42274 )
. . )
Respondent )
)

DECISION

The attached Stlpulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted as the
Decision and Order of the Medical Board of California, Department of Consumer Affairs,
State of California.

This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on April 26, 2019,

IT IS SO ORDERED: March 28, 2019.

MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA

@(Fﬁﬁw —
Ronald Lewis, M.D.,Chair
~ Panel A .
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XAVIER BECERRA

Attorney General of California

E. A. JONes III

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

CINDY M, LOPEZ

Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No. 119988

California Department of Justice -

300 So. Spring Street, Suite 1702 .

Los Angeles, .CA 90013
“Telephone: (213) 269-6494
Facsimile: (213) 897-9395

Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE

~ MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation/Petition to Case No. 800-2017-030624

Revoke Probation Against:

JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, M.D.
5020 East Washington Boulevard

City of Commerce Cahforma 90040 .

Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. G

42274

Respondent.

OAH No. 2018060461

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND
DISCIPLINARY ORDER

ITIS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

entitled proceedings that the following matters are true:

PARTIES

1. Kimberly Kirchmeyer (Complainant) is the Executive Director of the Medical Board

of California (Board) She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in

this matter by Xavier Becerra, Attorney General of the State of California, by Cindy M. Lopez,

Deputy. Attorney General.

1337844.1
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2. Respondent JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, MD (Respondent) is represented in this
proceeding by attorney Joel Bruce Doixglas, whose address is: 355 South Grand Ave., Ste. 1750
Los Angeles, CA 900711562 ' _

3. On or about July 1, 1980 the Board issued Physician's and Surgeon s Certificate No,
G 42274 to Respondent, The Physwlan s and Surgeon's Certificate was in full force and effect at
all times relevant to the charges brought in Accusation/Petition to Revoke Probation No. 800-
2017- 030624 and w111 expire on September 30, 2019 unless renewed.

_ JURISDICTION .
4, Ac':cusatic;n/}’etition to I‘{evoke'Probation No. 800-2017-030624 was filed before the -

Board, and is currently pending against Respondent. The Accusation/Petition to Revoke
Probation and all other statutorily required documents were properly served on Respondent on
March 15, 2017. Respondent timely filed his Notice of Defense contestmg the.
Accusation/Petition to Revoke Probation. _

5., A copy of Ac'.cusation/Petiti'on to Revoke Probation No. 800-2017-030624 is attached
as exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. '

' ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS |

6.  Respondent has carefully read, fully discussed with cotinsel, and understands the
charges and allega.ﬁon?. in Accusation/Petition to Revoke Probation NQ. 800-2017-030624.
Resﬁondcnt has also carefulfy read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the effects of
this Stipulated Séttlement and Disc_:iplinafy Order, .

7. . Respondent is fully aware of his legal rights in thié matter, inclgding the rightto a
hearing on the ch_arges and alllegaiions in the Accusation/Petition_ to Revoke Probation; the right -
to confront and grqss-pxamine the witnessés against him; the right to present evidenc_;e and to
testify on his own behalf; the right to the issuance of subpoe_na'ts to compel tile attendance of
witnesses and the production of documents; the right to reconsideration and court review of an
adverse decisi.or.x; and all other rights accorded by the Califo;'hia Administrative Procedure Act

and other applicable laws,

1337844.1 ) . 2
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8. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and
every right set forth above, . o
| ' CULPABILITY

9. Respondenf understands and agrees that the charges and allegations in
Accusation/Petiti'on to Revoke Probaﬁon No. 800-2017-03 0624, if proven at a hearing, constitute
cause for imposing discipline upon his Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate.

10. For the purpose'of resolving the Accusation/Petition to Revoke Probation without the
expense and uncertainty of furthef proceedings, Respondent agrees that, at a hearin g,
Complainant could establish a prima facie basis for the Third Cause for Discipline in the -
Accusation/Petition to Revoke Probatiqn (Inaccurate Record Keeping), and that Respondent
hereby gives up his i‘ight to contest those charges. . _

. 11. Respondent agrees that his Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate is subject to
discipline and he agrees to be bound by the Board's probationary terms as set forth in the
Disciplinary Order below. ' - .
CONTINGENCY
12. This stipulatibn shall be subject to approval by the Medical Board of California,

Respondent understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the Medical

Board of California may communicate directly with the Board regarding this stipulation and
settlement, without notice to or participation by Respondent or his.counsel. By signing the

stipulation, Respondent understands and agrees that he may not withdraw his agreement or seek

to rescind the stipulation pridr to the time the Board considers and acts upon it. If the Board fails

to adopt this stipulation es its Decision and Order, the Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
Order shall be of no force or effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be ingdmissible in any legal

action between the parties, and the Board shall not be disqualified from further action by having

- considered this matter.

13. The parties understand and agi'ee that Portable Document Format (PDF) and facsimile
copies of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order, including PDF and facsimile

signatures thereto, shall have the same force and effect as the originals.

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (800-2017-030624)




O 0 3 A th B W N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21
22
X
24
.25
26
27
28

14, In consideration of the foregoing aﬂmissions and stipﬁlations, the .parties agree that
the Board may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the follqwing |
Disciplinary Ordef: o

DISCIPLINARY ORDER .

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the term of seven years of probation imposéd by Décision
and Order in Case No, 11-2011-218741, effective February 8,"2013, a true copy of which is
attached as Exhibit B, is extended for one additional yea_.x:, for a fotal of eight )'f;aars, from February
8,2013. All other terms and conditions of said Decision and Order remain unchanged and
unaffected. - - .

1. MONITQRING - BILLING. Within 30 calendar days of t.'he effective date of this
l?ecis_ion, Respondent shall submit to the Board or its designee for prior. approvai as a billing
¢valuator, the name and qualifications of one or more.licensed physicians and surgeons whose
licenses are valid and in good standing, and who ate preferably American Board of Medical
Specialties (ABMS) 'certiﬁgd. The billing evaluator shall have no prior or current business or
persorial relationship with Respondent, ‘or other relationship t.hat could reas'onably be expected to
compromise the ability of the evaluator to render a fair and unbiaséd report to.the Board,
including but'not limited to any form of bartering, gnd shall be in Respondent’s 'ﬁeld of practice.
The Board or its designee shall provide the approved evaluat.or'with copies of the Decision and
Accusation, Respondent shall pay all evaluation costs. |

Within 60 calendar days of the effective date of this Decision, Respondent shall make all
records avail;a'ble to the evaluator for immediate inspection. Th(; evaluator shall review the said
records to determine if Respondent’s current billing practices comport with acceptable standards
of practice‘for billing.”

The evaluator shall prepare a report summarizing his/her findings and impressions as to
whether Resppndent’s.current billing practices comport w1th ﬁcceptab]e standards of pragtice for
billing.. The report shall be sent to the Board's designee, ' |

In the event the billing evaluator conéludes that Respondent's current billing practices do

not comport with acceptable standards of practice for billing, then within 30 calendar days of

1337844.1 : . 4 ' . o _
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notification thereof to the Respondent of that conclﬁsion, Respondent shall submit to the Board
or its designee for prior approval as a billing mon'itor'(s), the name and qualifications of one or
more licenseq ﬁhysicians and surgeons whose licenses are valid anq in good sta.nding, and who
are preferably American Board of Medical Specialties (ABMS) cértiﬁed. A monitorishall,have
no prior or current business or personal relationship with Respondent, or other relationship that _
could reasonably be expected to compromihe the ability of the monitér to render fair and unbiased
reports to the .Board, inciluding but not limited to any form of bartering, sha}l be in Respondent's-
field of pra.ctice, and must agree to serve as Respondent's monitor, Respondent shall pay all
monitoring costs.

The Board or its desigﬁee shall provide the approved monitor with cdi)ies of the Decision(s)
and Accusation(s), and a proposed monitoring plan. Within 15 calendar days of receipt of the
Debision('s), Acclisation(s), and proposed monitoring plan, the monitor shall s.ubmit a si gned
statement that the monitor has read the Decision(s) and Accusation(s), fully understands the role
of a monitor, and agrees or diségrees with the proposed monitoring plan. If the monitor disa_grees
with the proposed monitoring plan, the monitor shall submit a revised monitoring plan with the -
signed statement for approval by the Board or its designee.

Within 15 days of 'the, billing monitor's submission of a signed statement agreein'g with an
approved monitoring plan, Respondent's billing shall be monitored by the approved monitor fora
period of one-year. Respondent shall make all records available for immediate inspection and, if
need be, copying on the premises by the rr}onitor and-shall retain the records for the entire term .of
probation.

. If Respondent fails to obtain approval of a billing monitor within 60 calendar days of the
effective date of thisADecisioh, and/or, in the event the billing evaluator concludes Respondent's
current billing practices do not comport with acceptable standards of practice fc;r billing, .if
Respondent fails to obtain approval of a billing monitor within 60 days of notification by the
billing evaluator that Respondent's current billing practices do.not comport with acceptéble ‘
standards for billing, Respondent shall receive a notification from the Board or its designee to

cease the practice of medicine within three (3) calendar days after being so notified. Respondent

1337844.1 4 - .5
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shall cease the practice of medicine until a monitor is approved to provide monitoring
responsibility, |

Ifa bilI‘ing monitor is appointed, the monitor(s) shall submit a _qixarterly. written report to the
Board or its designee which includes an evaluation of Rcspo'ndent’s performané;e, indicating
whether Reéppndent’s practices are within the standards'of practice for billing, and whether
Respondent is ,l_Ji.lling apprc;priately. It shall be the sole responsibility of Respondent to ensure
that the monitor submits the quarterly written reports to the Board or its designee within 10
calendar days after the end of the preceding quarter.

If the monitor res1gns or is no longer available, Respondent shall, within 5 calendar days of

such 1es1gnat10n or unavailability, submit to the Board or its des1gnee for prior approval, the

‘name and quahﬁcatlons ofa rep[acement monitor who will be assummg that responsibility within

15 calendar days If Respondent fails to obtam approval of a replacement monitor within 60
calendar days of the resignation or unavallablhty of the monitor, Respondent shall receive a ‘
notification frorn the Board or its designee to cease the practice of mf:dlcine within three (3)
calendar days' after b(;,ing so notified. Respondent shall cease the practice of medicine until a
replacefnent monitor is approved and assumes monitoring résponsibility.

. In liew of a monitor, Respondent may participate in a professional enhar;dément program
approved in advance by the Board ;ir its designee that includes, at minin.mm,' quarterly chart
review, semi-annual practice assessment; and semi-annual review of professional growth énd _
education regarding th;a issue of appropriate billing practices. Respondent shall participate in the

professional ¢nhancement progtam at Respondent's expense during the term of probation.

ACCEPTANCE

I have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and have fully
discussed it with my attorney, Joel Bruce Douglas. 'I understand the stipulation and the effect it
will have on my Physician's and Surgeon's Certiﬁcate. I enter into this Stipulé‘ted Settlement and
Disciplinary Order vdlunfarﬂy, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound by the
Decis;ion and Order of the Medical Board of California. .

1337844.1 : 6
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[EPOR

i

ALFRED LEMUS, M.D. i
Respordent

pondent JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, M.D. the

Sy

I have read and fully discussed with Re

terms and conditions and other matters contaxr! ed in the above Stipulated Senlement and

stcnplmary Order. I approve its form and cm'qtent

JOEL BRUCE DOUGLAS L/ .
Attorney for Respondent Rl

ENDO RﬁEMm
The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Discxplmal y Order s hereby respectfully

submitted for consideration by the Medical Board of California.

Dated: 6 Ao ")’ Respectfully submitted,

' o XAVIER BECERRA

Attorney General of California

E. A.JONES I

Supervising Deputy Attomey General

C@uﬂ}né’

Deputy Attorney Qeneral
Attoa neys Jor Complainant

LA2017504338 . -
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XAVIER BECERRA
Attorney General of California
ROBERT MCKiM BELL

Supervising Deputy Attorney General FILED

CHRISTINE R. FRIAR STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Deputy Attorney General MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA

State Bar No, 228421 SACRAMENTO: 20077
California Department of Justice 8y , '

300 South Spring Street, Suite 1702 NALYST

Los Angeles, California 90013

Telephone: (21.3) 897-6404

Facsimile: (213) 897-9395
Attorneys for Camplainani

- BEFORE THE
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA '

In the Matter of the Accusation/Petition to Case No. 8002017030624

Revoke Probation Against: . :
ACCUSATION AND PETITION TO
JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, M.D. REVOKE PROBATION

5020 East Washington Boulevard
City of Commerce. California 90040

Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate : .o

No, G 42274,
Respondent.
Complainant alleges:
PARTIES

1. Kimberly Kirchmeyer (Complainant) brings this Accusatioﬁ and Petition to Revoke -
Probation solely in ht.:r official capacity as the Executive Director of the Medical Board of
California (Board). .

2. OnJuly 1, 1980, the Board issued Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate Number G
42274 1o James Alfred Lemus, M.D. (Respondent). That license was in full foree and effect ét all
times relevant ta the charges brought herein and will expire on September 30, 2017, unless
renewed. ,

" |

1
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3. Ina criminal action brought in the United States District Court, Central District of
i| California, Case No. CRI 1-00!81-MMM Respondent pled guilty and, on October 24, 2011, was
convicted of violating 26 U.S.C, 7201, a felony, f‘or attempting to evade or def‘cat payment of

income tax. Specifically, during the 2003 tax year, Respondent owned and operated Lemus
' J

‘ Medical Center, in Commerce, California. During that time period, Respondent provided
physioals and drug testing to truck drivers as requtred by the Department of Transportatlon
Respondcnl required most of those truck drivers to pay for the testing in cash. Regpondent
received approxnmately $88 ,663 in cash for performing these drug tests. Respondent knowingly
N failed to report these cash payments to the Internal Revenue Service. Respondent was sentenced

' to a one-month commumcnt to the Burcau of Pr isons, supervised release for s period of three

{ years, with nine months in a homé detention program, filing and payment of taxes owed for 2003

through 2007, and additional fees and penalties.

4, In a disciplinary action entitled In the Matter of the Accusation Against James Alfied
Lemus, M.D., Case No..11-2011-218741, on or about November 6, 2012, Respondent stipulated
to the revocation of his Physician's and Surgeon’s Certificate due to his felony criminal .
conviction fqr attempting to evade or defeat payment of income ‘tax in violation of 26 U.S.C.
7201, Based on a Stipulated Settlement between Respondent and the Board, effective February 8,
2013, the Board issued a Decision and-Order, in which Dr. Lemus’ California Physician's and

l Surgeon's Certi f"xcate was revoked. Hm\\'ever, the revocation was stayed and Respondent’s
‘ Physician’s and Surgeon’s Certificate was sus;)endéd for thirty days and placed on probation for a
period of seven years with special terms and conditions.

l JURISDICTION

. / .
5. This Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation is brought before the Board under
the authority of the following laws, All section references are to the Business and Professions
Code (Code)unless otherwise indicated.

6. Séction 2004 of the Code states:

" “The board shall have the responsibility for the following:
4

!
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“(a) The enforcement of the disciplinary and criminal provisions of the Medical Practice
Act.

“(b) The administration and ln.anng of dlsclpllnary actions.

*©) Carrymg out disciplinary actions appropriate to findings made by a panel or an
administrative law judge. ‘

“(d) Susplcnding, revoking, or otherwise limiting certificates-after the conclusion of
disciplinary actions.

“(e) Reviewing the quality of medical practice carried out by physician and surgeon
certificate holders under the jurisdiction of the board. | '

“(f) Approving undesrgraduate and graduate medical educatién programs.

‘.‘(g) Approving clinical clerkship and spe(.:ial programs and hospitals for the programs In
subdivision (f).

“h) ls'suing liccr;ses and certificates under the board's jurisdiction.

“(i) Administering the b(inrd's continuing medical education program.”

7. Sectlon 2227 of the Code states;

“(a) A licensee whose matter has been heard by an administrative léwjudge of the Medical
Quality Hearmg Panel as desxgnated in Section 11371 of the Govemmcnt Code, or whose default
has been entered, and who is found guilty, or who has entered i mto a stipulation for disciplinary
action with the board, may, in accordance with the provisions of this chapter:

(1) Havc;, his or her licénsq revoked upon order of the board. -

“(2) Have his or her right to practice suspended for a period ﬁot to exceed one year upon
order of the board. '

“(3) Be placed on probation and be required to pay the costs of probation menitoring upon
order of the board.

“(4) Be publicly reprimanded by the board. Tl;e 'public reprimand may include a
requirement that the licensee complete relevant educational courses approved by the board.

“(5) Have any other action taken in relation to discipline as part of an order of probation, as

the board or an administrative law judge may deem proper.

3
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‘f(b) Any matter heard pursuant to subdivision (&), except for warning letters, medical
review or advisory conferences, professional competency examinations, continuing education
activities, and cost reimbursement associated therewith that aré agreed to with the board and
successfully completed by the licensee, of other matters made confidential or privileged by
existing law, is deemed public, and shall be made available to the public by the board pursuani )
Section 803.1.” |

. 8. Section 2234 of the Code states:

“The board shall take action against any licensee who is charged with unprofessional
conduct. In addition to other provisions of this article, unprofessional conduct inchides, but is not
limited to, the folk')wing: '

*(a) Violating or atten’\pting to violate, directly or indirectly, assisting in or abetting the
violation of; or conspiring to violate any provision of this chapter.

“...

“(e) The commission of any act involving dishonesty or corrubtioﬁ which is substantially
related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of a physician and surgedn.

“on

9.  Section 2261 of the Code states:

“Knowingly making or signing any certificate or other document directly or indirectly
related to the practice of medicine or podiatry which falsely represents the existence or
nonexistence of @ state of facts, constitutes unprofessional conduet.”

10. Section 2266 of the Code states: “The failure of a physician and surgeon to maintain
adequate and accurate records relating to il1e provision of services to thcir patients constitutes
unprofessional conduct.”

/
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FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Unprofessional Conduct — False Re]ireseutations)

I1. Respondent is sibject to disciplinary action under Code sections 2234, subdivision
(a), and 2261 in that he submitted bills to insurance companies on which he named another
provider as the treating physician when, in fa;:t, Respondent was the treating physician. The
circumstances are as follows:

12, Respondent is the owner and operator of Lemus Medical Center, Inc. (LMC) located
in Commerce, California, Respoﬁdent practices industrial medicine; primarily' treating worker’s
compensation patients and conducting disability evaluations. .
13. Respondent works five or six days a week for Approximat‘ely twelve hours a day.

14, During the time pe;'iod relevant to the allegations herein, Respondent employed
- another physician, Dr. A.!, who treated patients at LMC on Wednesdays from 10:00 a.m, to 2:00
p.m. Dr. A, was not responsible for submitting bills for 'patient"treatmcnt to any ilnsuraﬁce

providers.

’Patlelgt G.S.

i5. Between January 16, 2014 and February 3, 2014, Respondent treated Patient G.S. on
at least five occasions. _ .
16. On the claim Respondent submitted to the State Insurance Cémpf:nsation Fund
(SICF) for payment for the services he provided to Patient G.S., Dr. A, is exclusﬁvely named as

the treatment provider,

21
22
23°
24
25
26
2|
28

17,  On numerous of Patient G.S.'s medical r.ecm:ds, as maintained by Respondent, Dr. A,
is named as Patient G.S."s treatment provider. }

18. On Patient G.S.‘s'remaining medical records, as maintained by Respondent,
Respondent is listed as the t;eatlnent provider.

19, Patient G.S. waé never treated by Dr. A, and only by Respondent,

J o

T [nitials will be used to protect the privacy of witnesses and patients.
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Patient C.D.G.

20, On olaims for payment that Respondent submjtted to Employers Compensation
Insurance Company (ECI) for medical services that Respondent provided to Patient C.D.G.
between January 2, 2014 and January 30, 2014, Dr. A, is exclusively named as the treatment
provider. )

21.  On Patient C.D.G.’s medical records, as maintained by R'es;;ondent, for Patient
C.D.G.”s January 2, 2014 through January 30, 2014 visits, Dr. A. is named as Patient C.D.G.’s
treatment provider.

22. Patient C.D.G. was never treated by Dr. A. and only by Respondent,

Patient J.D.G. '

23.  On claims for payment that Respondent submitted to ECI for medical services that
Respondent provided to Patient J.D.G. between December 30, 2013 and January 23, 2014, Dr, A,
is exclusively named as the treatment provider.

24.  On numerous of Patient J,D.G.’s medical records, as maintained by Respondent, Dr.
A. is named as Patient J.D.G.'s treatment provider. -

25. On Patient J.D.G.’s rcm’aining medical records; as maintained by Respondent,
Resporident is named as the treatment provider.

26. Patient J.D.G, was never treated by Dr. A. and only by Respondent.

27. Respondent knew that Dr. A, was sometimes named as the treatment provider on
insurance claims forms even though Respondent was aqtué\l ly the treating physician,

28. Respondent’s acts and/or c;lnissions as set forth in paragraphs 12 through 27,
inclusive above, whether proven mdwndually, jointly, or in any combination theveof, constltute
false representations in vuolation of Code sections 2234, subdivision (a), and 2261 and cause for
discipline exists. ‘ '

it

i

i

i
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SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Unprofess:onalConduct Dishonesty)

29. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under Code sections 2234, subdlvxswns
(a) and (c). in that Respaondent squltted bills to insurance companies on which he named another
provider as the treating physician when, in fact, Respondent was the treating physician. The
circumstani;es are as follows: ,

30, Paragraphs 12 through 27 are incorporated by reference and re-alleged as if fully set
forth herein, |

31. Respondgnt’s acts and/or omissions as set forth in paragr'ap_hs‘ 12 through 27,
inclusive above, whether proven individually, jointly, or n any combination thereof, constitute
dishonest acts in violation of Qection 2234, subdivi'sions (a) and (e), of _thc Code and cause for

discipline exists.

THIRD, CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Unprofessional Conduct — Inaccurate Record Keeping)
i 32, Rcspondem is subject to disciplinary action under Code section 2266 in that he falled
to maintain accurate records concerning his ceire and treatmemvof Patients G.S., C.D.G. and
‘ 1.D.G. The circumstances are as follows:
33, 'Paragraphs 12 through 27 are incorporated by reférence and re-atleged as If fully set

forth herein. ! .

34. In numerous instances, Respondent incorrect.ly recorded in Patients G.S.'s, C.D.G."s
and J.D.G.’s medical records that Dr. A was the treatment provider, These patients were never,

AN

however, treated by Dr. A., but instead by Respondent. -

F 35. Respondent’s acts and/or omissions as set forth in paragraphs 12 through 27 and 33-
34, inclusive above, whether provcﬁ individually, jointly, or in any combinatiqn thereof,
constitute inadequate record keeping in violation of section 2266 of the Code and. cause for
discipline exists. )

"

"

7 ‘ .
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CAUSE REVOKE PROBATION
(Fallure to Obey All Laws)

36.  Atall times after the effective date of Respondent's probation, Condition 5 of the
Decision, (attached hereto as Exhibit A), stated:

“OBEY ALL LAWS, Respondent shall obey all federal, state and local laws, all rules
governing the practice of medicine in California and remain in full compliance with any court
ordered criminal probation, payments, and other order.” | A

7. Paragraphs 12 through 35 are incorporated by reference and re-alleged as if fully set
forth herein, ‘ |

38. Respondent viol'atéd his probation because he violated the laws g'oveming the
practice of medicine in California (Code secpions 2234, subdivisions (a) and (ej, 2234 and 2266)
when he submitted bills to insurance companies on which he named another provider as the
treating physician when, in fact, Respondent was the treating physician; and when he documented
in Patients G.8.’s, C.D.G.’s and J.D.G.’s medical record that they were treated by Dr. A. and not
himself. ' l

39. Respon.dem’s probatio'n is subject to revocation because he \_iiolated Condition 5 of
his probation, as set forth above in paragraphs 37 through 38.

PDISCIPLINARY CONSIDERATIONS

46. To determine the degr.ée of discipliné, if any, to be imposed on Respondent,
Complainant alleges that Respondent was previously disciplined for incunfing a felony t_:rimim;l
conviction for attempting to evade or defeat payment of income tax in violation 0of 26 U.S.C,
7201. Specifically, on or about February 8, 2013, in a disciplinary action entitled, In the Matter
of the Accusation Against James Alfred Lemus, M. D;, Medical Board of California, Case No, 11-
2011-218741 Respondent’s license was revoked with the revocation stayed and seven years of
probatioﬁ imposed. Respondent’s license was also suspended for thirty days. That decision is
now final and is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. ‘

/

"
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PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Camplainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing, the Medical Board of California issue a decision:

1. Revoking the probation that was granted by the Medical Board of California in Case
No. 11-2011-218741 and imposing the disciplinary order that was stayéd tﬁereby revoking
Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No, G 42274 issued to James Alfred Lemus, M.D,;

2. Revoking or suspending hi.s Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate;

3. Revoking, suspending or denying approval of his authon_;ity to supervise physician -
assistants, pursuant to section 3527 of the Code; ;

4.  If placed on probation, otdering him to pay the Board the costs of probation
monitoring; and

5.  Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

DATED: March 15,. 2017

Executlve Director
Medical Board of California
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California

" Complainant

~e

LA2017504338
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BEFORE THE
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNLA
BEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Mutter of the Aceusation '
Against:

JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, M.D. Case No, 31-2011-218741

Physician's and Surgeon's
Certificate No, G-42274

Respondent

e e e A ~— e e & - o

DECISION -

The attuched Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted as the
Decision and Order of the Medical Board of California, Depariment of Consumer Affairs,

State of California,

This Declsion shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on February 8, 2013,

IT IS SO ORDERED: January 9, 2013..

MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA

arbara YaroslavsKy, €hair
Panel A )



KAMALA D. HARRIS

Attorney General of California

2 || ROBERT MCKIM BELL
Supervising Deputy Attomey General
3 || PEGGE: BRADFORD TARWATER
Deputy Attorney General -
4 || State Bar No, 169127
California Department of Justice
5 300 S. Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013 .
6 || Telephone: (213) 620-6068
Facsimile; (213) 897-9395
7 || Auorneys for Complainant - _
8 BEFORE THE
, MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
9 DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
10 * STATE OF CALIFORNIA
11 || in the.Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No, 11-2011-218741
12 || JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, M.D. OAH No. 2012090231
5020 East Washington Boulevard : : - ,
13 || City of Commerce. California 90040 STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND
‘ DISCIPLINARY ORDER
14 || Physician's and Surgeon's Centificate No, G
42274
15 ~
Respondent.
16
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IT 1S HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and belween the parties to the above-

entitled proceedings that the following matters arc tfue:
PARTIES.
1, Linda K. Whitney (Complainant) is the Excoutive Direclor of the Medical Board of

l + California, Depariment of Consumer Affairs (Board). She brought this action solely in her.

official capacity and is represented in this matter by Kamala D. Harris, Attomey General of the
State of California, by Peggie Bradford Tarwaler, Doputy Attorney General,
2. Respondent James Al fred Lem)us, M.D. (Respondent) is represented in this

are

proceeding by awtomey Thomas R. Bradford, Esq., whose address is 100 North First Street, Suite

300, Burbank, Califomia 91502

. STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (11-2011-218741)




] 3. On or about July 1, 1980, the Medical Board of Californin issued Physician's and
2 || Surgeon's Certificate No, G 42274 to Jumes Alfred Lemus, M.D. (Respondent). The Physiclun's
3 || and Surgeon's Cerlificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought
4 ” in Accusation No. 11-2011-218741 and will expire on Scptember 30, 20!3, unless rcnev;'cd. |
'5 | JURISDICTION
6 4. Accusation No. 11-2011-218741 was filed before the Medical Board of Califomia
7 r (Board), Department of Consumer Affairs, and is currently pending against Responéém. The
8 Accusation and ull other statutorily required documents were _f)roperly scfveﬁ on Respondent on
0 || July 24,2012, Respondent_timgly filed his Notice of Defense contesting the Accusation,
10 5, Acopyof Accusation No. 11-2011-218741 is attached as Exhibit A and in;:orpox'ated |
11 ficre,in by reference. |
12 ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS
13 6. Respondenl has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the
14 || charges and allegations in Accusation No, 11-201 l-).!1874!. Respondent has also carefully read,
15 || fully discussed with counscl, and understands the effects of this Stipulated Settiement and
16 }F Disciplinary Order. . f
17 7. Respondentis fully aware of his legal rights in this matter, including the nght toa
18 . hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by counsel at
19 || his own expense; the right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against him; the rig,ht to
20 || present evidence and 10 testify on his own behalf; the right to the issuance of subpoénas to compel
21 || the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents; the right to reconsideration and |
22 | court review of an adifcrsc decision; and all other right.s accorded by the California
23 { Admunstnuve Procedurd Act and other applicable laws. '
24 8.  Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, ‘and mtelhgcntly waives and gives up each and
25 I every right set forth above. ,
26 “ (1
a7 /Y
28 It 111
.2 .
STIPULATED SE’I‘TLEMENT {11-2011-218741)
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' CULPABILITY
9. Respondent admits the truth of each and every charge and allegation in Accusat.iun
No. 11-2011-218741. |
10. Respondent agreos that his Physician's and Surgeon’s Certificate is subject to
discipline and he agrees to be bound by thvc Board's probationary terms as set forth in the
Disciplinary Order below.
RESERVATION
11.. ‘The admissions made by Respondent herein are only for the purposes of this
proceeding, or any other proceedings in which the Medical Board of California or other
professional licensing agency is involved, and shall not be admissible in any other criminal or
civil proceeding. '
' CONTINGENCY

12.  This stipulation shall be subject to _approﬁal by the Medical Board of California.
Respondent understands and agrees that counsel fm{ Complainait and the staff of the Medical

Board of California may communicate directly with the Board regarding this'stipulation and

" settlement, without notice to or participation by Respondent or his counsel. By signing the

stipulation, Respondent understands and agrees that he may not withdraw his agreement or seck
io rescind the stipulation prior to the time the Board considers and acts upon'it, If the Board féils
to adopt this stipulation as its Decision and Order, the Stipulafcd Settlement and Disciplinary
Order shall be of no force or effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inndmissib]e?n any legal
action between the partics, and the Board shall not be disqualificd from further action by having
consi'déred this matter.

13.. The partic-.é understand and agree that facsimile copies of this Stipulated Settiement
and Disciplinary Ordor, including facsimile signatures thercto, shall have the same force and
effect as the originals, .

14.  In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the partics agree thal

the Board inny, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following

Disciplinary Order:

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (11:2011-218741)
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. DlSCIPLlNARY ORDER
IT 1S HEREBY ORDERED that Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No.'G 42274 issued

to Respo:{dcnt James Alfred Lemus,-M.D. (Respondent) is revoked. However, tﬁe revocation is

_stayed and Responden_{ is placed on probation for seven yeats on the following terms and

condltions. _ ' g _

1.  ACTUAL SUSPENSION. Aspart of probation, Respondént is suspended from the
practice of medicine for 30 days. Days spent in custody asa fesr.;lt of Respondenl’s; commitment
to the Bureau of Prisons in United States District Court, Central District of California, Case
Number CR11-00181-MMM may be credited (o meet the 30-day re;quirement.

2. COMMUNITY SERVICE - FREE SERVICES. Within 60 calendar days of the
cffective date of this Decision, Respondent.shall submit io the Board or its designee for prior
approval a community service plan in which Respondent shall within the first three yeafs of
probation, provide 300 hours of free services (e.8., medical or nonmedical) to 8 community or.
fion-profit organization. Prior to engaging in any community séwice, Respongdent shall provide a
{rue copy of the Decision(s) to the chief of staff, director, office m:u;ager. program manager,
officef, or the chief executive officer al every cmmnunfty or non-profit organization where ‘
Respondent provides commumty service and shall submit proof of compliance to the Board or its
designee within 15 calendar days This condition shall also apply to any changc(s) in community

service,

-
Community scrvice performed prior to the effective dato of the Decision shall not be

accepted in fulfillment of this.condition.

3, PROFESSIONALISM PROGRAM [E]:J-HCS COURSE). Within 60 calendar days of|

the éf fective date of this Decision, Respondent shall enroll in a professionalism program, that
meets the requircments of Title 16, California Code of Regulations section 1338, Respondent
éhall participate in and successfully complete that program. Responéenl shall provide any
mformanon and documents that the program mey deem pertinent, Respondent shall succ;ssfu)ly
complete the classroom component of the program not fater ihan six months afler Respondent’s

initial enroliment, and the longitudinal component of the program not Jater than the time specified

4
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by the program, but no later than one year after attending the classroom component. The
professionalism program shall be at Respondent’s expense and shall bein udditionl 1o the
Continuing Medical Education requirements for renewal of licensure,

A professionulism program taken afler the acts that gave risc to the charges in the
Accusation, but prior to the effective date of the Decision may, ir} the sole discretion of the Board
or its designee, b accepted towurds the fulfiliment of this condition if the,program would have
been approved by the Board or its desigﬁce had the program been taken after the effective date of
this Decision.

Respondent shall submit a certification of successful completion to the Bourd or its
designee not later than 15 calendar days aftér successfully completing the program or not later
than 15 calendar days afier the effective date of the Decision, whichever is later.

4. NOTIFICATION. W ithin seven days of the effective date of this Decision,

_Respondent shall provide a wue copy of this Decision and Accusation to the Chief of Staff or the

Chief Executive Officer at every hospital where privileges or membership are extended to

Respondent, at any other facility where Respondent engages in the practice of medicine,

It includinig all. physician and locum tenens registrics or other similar agencies, and to the Chief

Executive Officer at every insurance carrier which extends malpractice insurange coverage to

Respondent. Respondent shall submit proof of complinnce to the Board or ils designee within 15

calendar days. y ' BN

This condition shall apply to any change(s) ip hospitals, other facilities or insurance carrier.

5. OBEYALL 'LﬁWS. Respondent shall. obey all federal, state and local laws, all rules
govcmi.ng the practice of medicine in California and remain in foll, cbmplianéa with any court'
ordered criminal probation, payments, and other arders. .

6. QUARTERLY DECLARATIONS. Respondent shall submit quarterly declarations
under penalty of perjury on forms provided by the Board, stating whether there has been
compliance with all the conditions of probation.

Responden't shall submit quarterly declarations not later than 10 calendar days after the end

of the preceding quarter.

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (11-2011-218741)
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7. GENERAL PROBATION REQUIREMENTS.
Compliance with Probation Unit '

Respondent shal) comply with the Board's probation unit and all terms and conditions of

this Decision, -
~ Address Changes

Respondent shall, at all times, keep the Board informed of Respondent’s business and
residence addresses, email address (if available), and telephone number, Chahgcs of such
addresses shall be immediately communicated in writing to the Board orits designee. Under no’
circumstances-shall a post office box serve as an address of record, ékcept as allowed by ﬁusiness
mnd Professions Code section 2021(b). - .

Place of Practice

Respondent shall not engage in the practice of medicine in Resimn-dent's or paltient’s place

of residence, unless the patient resides in a skilled nursing facility or other similar licensed

P

facility.
License Rencwal

Respondent shall maintain a current and renewed California physician's and surgeon's

ficense. . /

Travel or TKesidcnce Qutside Cg' lifornia

Respondent shall immediately inform the Board or its designee, in writing, of travel to any
areas outside the jurisdiction of California which lasts, or is coniemplated to last, more than thisty

calendar days.
In the event Respondent should leave the State of California to reside or to practice

Respondent shall notify the Board or its designee in writing 30 calendar days prior to the dates of

departure and retumn,

8. !NTBRV!!*';W WITH THE BOARD OR ITS DESIGNEE. Respondent shall be

available in person upon request for interviews either at Respondent’s place of business or at the

probation unit office, with or without prior notice throughout the torm of pfobétion.

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (11-2011-218741)
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9.. NON-PRACTICE WHILE ON PROBATION. Respondent shall notify the Board or

jts designee in writing within 13 calendar days of any periods of non-practice lasting more than
30 calendar days and within 15 calendar days of Respondent’s return 1o practice, Non-practice is
defined as any period of time Respondent is not pra(;ticing medicine in California s defined in
Business and Professions Code sections 2051 and 205—2 for at least 40 hours in ;a calendar month
in direet patient care, clinical activity or teaching, or other activity as approved by the Board. All
time spent in an intensive training program which hai; been approved by the Board or its designee
shall not be considered non-practice. Practicing medicine in another state of the United States or

Federal jurisdiction while on probation with the medical licensing authority of that stateor -

jurisdiction shall not be considered non-practice. A Board-ordered suspension of practice shall
not bc considered as a period of non-practice. ) '

In the event Respondent's pcnod of non-practice while on probation exceeds 18 calendar
months, Respondent shall successfully complete a clinical trmmng program that meets the criteria
of Condition 18 of the current version of the Board's “Manual oi Model Dlsclplinnry Orders and
Disciplinary Guidelines” prior to resuming the pracnce of medicine.

Respondcnt s period of non-practice while on probauon shall not excoed two (2) years.

Periods-of non-practice will not apply to the reduction of thc probationary term. ‘

Periods of non-practice will relieve Respondent of the responsibility to comply with the

probationary torms and conditions with the exception of this condition and the following tefms

e

and conditions of probation: Obey All Laws; and General Probalion Requirements,

10. COMPLETION OF PROBATION. Respondent shall comply with all financial

abligations (e.g., vestitution, probation costs) not later than 120 cafendar days prior to the
X b

be fully restorec_l.

11. VIOLATION OF PROBATION, Failure to fully comply with any term or f:ondition
of' probation is a violation of probation. 1f Respondent violates probalionlin any respect, the
Board, after giving Respondent notice and the opportunity to be hcard may revoke probation and

carry out the disciplinary order thai was stayed. 1f an Accusation, or Petition to Revoke

7

completion of probation. Upon successful completion of probatjon, Respondent's certificate shall | -

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (11-2011-218741)
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Probation, or an laterim Suspension Order is filed against Respondent during probation, the

Board shall have continuing jurisdiction until the matier is final, and the period of probation shall

be extended until the matter is final.

12, LICENSE SURRENDER. Following the effective date of this Decision, if

Respondent ceases practicing due to retirement or health reasons or is otherwise unable to satisfy

_the terms and conditions of probauon. Respondent may request to surrender his or her license.

The Board reserves the right to evaluate Respondent’s request and to exercise its discretion in

determining whether or not to grant the request, or to take any other action deemed appropriate

and reasonable under the circumsiances. Upon formal acceptance of the surrender, Respondent

| shall within 15 calendar ‘days deliver Respondeut’s wallet and wall certificate to the Board or its

designee and Respondent shall no longer practice medicine, Respondent will no longer be subject
to the terms and conditions of probation. If Respondent re-applies for a medical license, ihe
application shall be treated as a petition for reinstatement of arevoked certificate.

13. PROBATION MONITORING COSTS. Respondent shall pay the costs associated
with probation monitoring each and cvery year of probation, as designated by the Board, which
may be adjusted on an annual basis. Such costs shall be payable to the Medical Board of
California and delivered to the Board or its designee no later than January 31 of each calendar
year,

1
1!
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ACCEPTANCE
I have carefully read the above Stipulated Settfement and Discii)linm‘y Qcder and have fully
discussed it with my attorney, 'I'hbmas R. Bradiord {I".sq } understand the stipulation and the
|‘ effect i ‘will have on-my Physician's and Surgcon s Certificate. 1 enterinto this Stipulated -
Settlement and Disciplinary Order voluntanly. knnwmgly, and jntelligently, and agree fo be
bound by the Decision and Order of the Mecdical Board of Cahfomxa.

DATED: 27 / 4_// z2 W ”'%Wm
) JAMESALFRED LEMUS, M.D.
Respondent

T have read and fully discussed with Respondent James Alfred Lemus, M.D. tﬁe torms and

abave Stipy

conditions and other matters copfained in 15
1 approve its form and content.

DATED: /.//6 2

r 11
rir
111
i1
i
i
i1
/11
11}

A1

i1
i
11t
11

o Se.ttlcmetit and Disciplinary Order.
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. ENDORSEMENT
The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully
submitied for consideration by the Medica! Board of California of the Department of Consumer

Affairs,

Dated: /'/ /gf 4 fﬂ. Respectfully submitied,
r v ’ '

KAMALA D. HARRIS

- Attorney General of California
ROBERT MCKM BELL
Superv:smg Deputy Attomey General

J P

: Dcputy Altomey General
Attorneys for Complainant

LA2012604115
60867964.doc

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (11-2011-218741)
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°'TA‘TE Ogltio
. g LIFOR
MEDICAL BOARD OF CAL?;?JRNM
KAMALA D, HArRIS SACRAMENTO A\, 94 201
Attorney General of California . BYX . ¥\ N ALY%
| ROBERT MCK.iM BELL S _
Supervising Deputy Atlomey General
PEGGIE BRADFORD TARWATER '
Deputy Attomey General
State Bar No. 169127
- Catifornia Department of Justice
300 South Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013 '
Telephone: (213) 620-6068
Facsimile: (213) 8§97-9395
Attorneys for Complainant
: BEFORE THE
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
' DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Malier of the Accusation Againsts Case No. 11-2011-218741 -
JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, M.D,
L 3020 East Washingion Boulevard )
City of Commerce, California 90040 ACCUSATION
Physician's and Surgeon's Cerlificate No. G
42274,
l- ' Respondent. |
Complainant alleges:
PARTIES

1, - Linda K. Whitncy (Com;ﬂai:ﬁ:m) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity
18 the Executive Disector of the Medical Board of California, Department of Consumer Affnirs
'(Board). ‘

2. - Onorabout July 1, 1980, the Medical Board of California issued Physician's and
Surgeon's Certificate number G 42274 fo James Alfred Lomus, M.D. (Respondent). The
Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the

'H charges brought herein and will expire on September 30, 2013, unless renewed.
11
1
- Avcusstion
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JURISDICTION
3. This Accusation is brought before the Bourd under the airthority of the following
luws,
4.  Business and Professions Code section 2227' provides that 4 licenses who is found
guilty under the Medien] Practice Act may huve his or ber liconse revolied, suspended for u period

nol 1o éxceed one year, placed on probution and required to puy the costs of probation monjloring
} ]

or such other uction taken inselation 10 discipline as the Board deems proper.

5. Section 2234 of the Code states:
"The board shall inke uction against any licensee who s charged with unprofessional

conduct. In addition to other provisions of this article, unprofessional conduet includes, but is not

. limited to, the following: -

"(«) Violating or attempling to violate, directly or indirectly, assisting in or abetting the
violation of, or conspiring 10 violate any provision of this chapler [Chapter 5, the Medical

Practice Act}.

" /

*(¢) The commission of any act involving dishonesty or corruption which is substantially
related (o the qualifications, functions, 6r duties of a physician und surgeon,

(D) Any aclfon or conduct which would have warranted the denial of a certificale."

6. Section 2236 of the Code slales:

“(3) The conviction of any offense substuntiully related 'to the gualifications, functions, or
duties of a physician and surgeon conslilules unprofessional conduct within the meaning of this
chapter [Clmplcr 5, the Medical Practice Act]. The record of conviclion shall be conclusive .

evidence only of the fuct that the conviction occurred.

) All statutory references are (o the Business and Professions Cade, unless otherwise
indicated. '

N

Accusation
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“™{d) A plea wr verdict of guilty or 2 canviclion aRer i plex of nolo comcudc‘re is deemed Lo
he a conviction within the meaning of ihis scction and Section 2236.1. The record of conviction
shall be conclusive evidence of the fuet that the conviclion occurred,™

7. Californin Code of Rug;ulali(ms, title 16, section 1360, states:

“For the purpuws of denjal, suspension or revoculion of s license, cerlificate or permit

_pursuunt to Division 1 7 (commencing with Scction 475} of the code, a t.nmc or acl shall be

considered to be substaniially related to (hc qualificutions, funclions or duues of b person holdmg
a license, certificate or permit under the Medical Practice Act if to a substantia) degree it
evidences present or polential unfitness of a person holding # license, cerlificute or permit to
perform the funclions authorized by the license, certificate or pernit in 4 manner consistent with
the public health, safety or welfare, Such crimes or acts shall include but not be limited to the
following: Vnolatmg or attempting 1o violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or abetting the
violation of, or conspiring Lo vmlme any provision of the Medical Pracuce Act”

8.  Title 26, United Slales Code, section 7201 provideve

“Any person who willfully attempts in any manner to evade or defeat any tax imposed by

'this title or the payment thereof shall, in addition to other penalties provided by law, be guilty of a

felony and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined not more than $100,000 (3500,‘000 in the case
ofa corporaticm), or imprisoned not more than 5 years, or bath, togetber with the costs of
prosecution.” |
- - CAUSEFOR DISCIPLINE
(Conviction of a Crime)
9,  Respondenl is subject (o disciplinary action under section 2227, 2234, and 2;36 and

California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1360, in that he was convicled of aliempling to -

evude or defeat payment of income tax in violation of 26 United States Code section 7201. The

circumslances are as fallows:

10. During tiw 2003 tax year, Respondent owned and operdied Lemus Medicu! Clinic

28 1‘ (LMC), in Commerce. Culifornia, During that time period. LMC prm-i'ded p.hysiculé and drug '

]
-

Accusation
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westing Lo truck drivers as réquired by the Department of T muspurmﬁmt. Respondent required
must of those wuck drivers 16 pay for the testing in cush, In 2003, Respondent received
approximaiely $88,663 in cash from performing these drug-lests. However, iy n»uier to conceul
the cush ;eccip;s from the Interna] Revenue Service (“IRS“). Respondem knowingly failed to
report that cush (o the IRS. ' )
11, Respondent knew that he had received substuntiul laxable income during 2003,
namé:ly $88,663 in cash, and that he was required o file 4 United States Individual Tax Return,
Form 1040, reporting his txable income, including the cash he received, and puy the taxes that

were due. Respondent willfully atiempied io evade and defeal the assessment and pnymeni of

such tax by willfully failing 10 report the cash he received on his 2003 Federal Income 'i'ax

‘Return.

12 Rcspondcnl ucted for the purpose of evading his duties unde er the tax laws and not a$ a |

result of accident or neghg.ence. Respondent’s actions resulted in an ‘additional tax due and
owing 1o the IRS of $20,626 for 2003, B

13. On or about March 2, 2011, in United States District Court, Central District of
California, Case Number CRI]-OO].SI-MMM, an Information was filed chz;rging Respondent
with attempting to cvade or defeal payment of income tax in violation of 26 United States Code
section 7201,

14,  On or about Murch 2, 2011, a plea agreement was filed in which Respondent pled
guilty to the charge as sel fosth in the Information.

15. On or about October 24, 2011, Respondent was Selllcnc;cd. The terms and conditions
mcludt,d the following: one-month commitment to the Bureaw of Prisons; supervised rejease for a
period of three years, with nine months in a home detention program; filing and pnymun of taxes
owed for 2003 trough 2007; and additiona) fees and penaliics.

16. Respondent’s conduct, as set forth in paragraphs 9 through 15 constitules the

| conviction of a crime, substantially related to the qualiﬁcaliom functions or duties of a physician,

e

pursuant to section 2236 of the Code. Therefore cause for discipline exists,

Accusntion
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PRAYER
WHEREFORE, Complaini! requesis that o hearing be hcid on the matters herein allegod,
aud t"hm following the hearing, the Medicsl Bourd of Culifornia issue u decision:
3. Revoking or suspending Physiciu'n’s and Surgenn's Certificate Number G 42274,
issued to James Alf n-:d Lemus, M.D.;
2. Rv:.\'okiug; suspending or denying approval of his authority to supervise physiclun's
assistants, pursuiml to section 3527 of the Code;

”

3. If heis placed on probation, ordering him 1o pay the Medical Board of California the

It ' . -
costs of probation monitoring;

4. Tuking such other and furiher action as deemed necesgary and proper.

DATED: July 24, 2012

LINDA K. WHITNE
Executive Direclor
Medical Board of
Depariment of
State of California -

Complainent

LA2012604115

Accusijon { -
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- BEFORE THE
MEIHCAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT QF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIEFORNEA

kn the Matter of the Accusation )
Against: )
' )
. } N

JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, M.D. ) Case No. 11-2011-218741
)
Physician's and Surgeon’s )
Certificate No. G-42274 )
- )
Respondent )
)

DECISION

~ The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order Is hereby adopted as the
. Decision and Order of the Medical Board of Cnlifomm, Department of Consumer Affairs,

State of California,
This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on Eebruary §. 2013,

IT IS SO ORDERED: Januarv 9.2013,

!

MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA

Barbara Yarostavsy, Chair
Panel A
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KAMALA D. HARRIS
Attorney General of California
ROBERT MCKIM BELL
Supervising Deputy Attomey General
PEGGIE BRADFORD TARWATER
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 169127
California Department of Justice
300 S. Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013 '
Telephone: (213) 620-6068
Facsimile: (213) 897-9395
Attorneys for Complainant. '
BEFORE THE .
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNI
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Against: | CaseNo. 11-2011-218741
JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, M.D. OAH No. 2012090231
5020 East Washington Boulevard
City of Commerce. California 90040 STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND

. DISCIPLINARY ORDER
Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. G
42274 -

Respondent.

L

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the pslirties to the above-

eﬁtit]ed proceedings that the following matters are true:
PARTIES

1.  Linda K. Whitney (Complainant) is the Executive Difector of the Medical Board of
California, Departm'ém of Consumer Affairs (Board). She brought this action solely in her
official capacity and is represented in lh.is matter by Kamala D. Harris, Attorney General of the.
State of California, by Peggie Bradford Tarwater, Députy Attorney General.

2. Respondent James Alfied Lemus, M.D. (Respondent) is represented in this

proceeding by attorney Thomas R. Bradford, Esq., whose address is 100 North First Street, Suite

300, Burbank, California 91502

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (} 1-2011-218741)
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3. Onorabout July ], 1980, the Medical Board of California issued Phiysician's and
Surgeon's Certificate No. G 42274 to James Alfred Lemus, M.D. (Respondent). The Physician's

and Surgeon s Certificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought

in Accusatmn No, 11-201 1-218741 and will expire on September 30, 2013, unless renewed.
JURISDICTION
4,  Accusation No, 11-2011-218741 was filed befofe the Medical Board of California
(Board), Departﬁuent of Consumer Affairs, an'd is currently pending against Respondent, The
Accusation and all other statutorily required documents were properly served on Respondent on
July 24, 2012. Respondent timely filed his Notice of Defense contesting the Accusation.
5. A copy of Accusation No. 11-2011-21 S74f is aitached as Exhibit A and incorporated

herein by reference.

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVER§ :
6.  Respondent has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the

charges 1;11d allegations in Acousation No, 11-2011-218741. Respondent has also carefully read,
fully discussed with counsel, and understands the effects of this Stipulated Settlement and
Disciplinary Order. ‘ ’

7.  Respondent is fully aware of his legal rights in this matter, including the right to a

hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by counsel at

his own expense; the right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against him; the right to

present eviderice and ta testify on his own behalf; the right to the issuance of subpo'enas to compel| -

the aitendance of witnesses an_d the production of documents; the right to reconsideration and
court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the California
Administrative Procedure Act and othier applicable Jaws. _

8.  Respondent voluntarily, knpwing] y, and iinelligentl y waives and gives up ea'ch and
every right set forth above. .

/

111
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CULPABILITY
9.  Respondent admits the truth of each and every charge and allegation in Accusation
No. 11-2011-218741. |
10. Respondent agrees that his Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate is subject to
discipline and he agrees to be bound by the Board's probatioﬁary terms as set forth in the
Disciplinary Order below. '
RESBRVAT]ON
11. The admissions ﬁwde by Respondent herein are only for the purposes of this
proceeding, or any other proceedings in which the Medical Board of California or other -
professional licensing agency is involved, and shall not be admissible in any other criminal or
ciyil proéeedin-g. |
CONTINGENCY
12. This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Medical .Board of California,
Respondent understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the Medical
Board of California may communicate directly with the Board regarding this stipulatxon and
sett!ement without notice to or participation by Respondcnt -or his counsel. By mgnmg the

stipulation, Respondent understands and agrees that he may not withdraw his agreement or seek

 to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the Board considers and acts upon it. If the Board fails

to adopt this stipulation as its Decision and Order, the Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
Order shall be of no-force or effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any'legal
action between the parties, and the Board shall not be disqualified from further action by having

consideved this matter.,

13, The parties understand and agree that facsimile copies of this Stipulated Settlement
and Disciplinary Order, including facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same force.and

effect as the originals.

14, In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stii)ulations,' the parties agree that
the Beard may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following

Disciplinary Order:

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (11-2011-218741)
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DISCIPLINARY ORDER
IT IS HEREBY ORDE_RED that Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. G 42274 is;uéd

to Respondent James Alfred Lemus, M.D. (Respondent) is revoked. However, the revocation is
stayed and Res;ondent is placeﬁ on probation 1"or:‘seven years on the following terms and
conditions. . y |

1.” ACTUAL SUSPENSION. As part of pro‘t;ation, Respondent is suspended from the
practice of medicine for 30 days. Days spent in custody as a result of Respopdent’s commitment

to the Bureau of Prisons in United States District Court, Central District of California, Case

Number CR171-00181-MMM inay be credited {o meet the 30-day requirement.

2, COMMUNITY SERVICE - FREE SERVICES. Within 60 calendar days of the
cffective date of this becision, Respondent shall submit to the Board or its designee for prior
approval & community service plan in which Respondent shall within the first three years of
probation, provide 300 Thours of free services (e.g., medical or nonmedwal) to a community or
non-profit orgamzatxon -Prior to engagiiig in any community service, Respondenl shall provnde A
true copy of the Decision(s) to the chief of staff, director, office manager, program manager, |

officer, or the ‘chief executwe officer at every community or non-profit organization where

- Respondent provides community service and shall submit proof of compliance to the Board or its

designee thhm 15 calendar days. This condition shall also apply to any change(s) in commumty

service.

Community service performed prior to the effective date of the Decision shall not be

accepted in fulfillment of this.condition.

3. ROFESS IONALISM PROGRAM (ETHICS COURSE! Within 60 calendar days of]

the effective date of this Decision, Respondent shall enroll in a professionalism program, that
meets the requirements of Title 16, California Code of Regulations section 1358. Resp-()ﬁdent
shall participate in and successfully complete that program. Respondent shall provide any
information and documents that the program may deem pertinent, Respondent shall successfully '
complete the classroom component of the program not Tater than six months after Respondent’
initial enroliment, and the Jongitudinal component of the program not later than the time specified

4
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by the program, but no later than one Xeﬂr afier attending the classroom component. The

professionalism program shall be at Respondent’s expense and shall be in addition to the
Continuing Medical Education requirements for renewal of licensure.

A professionalism program taken after the acts that gave rise to the charges in the . '
Accusation, but prior to the eﬂ’cc_tivc date of .t'h.e Decision may, in the sole discretion of the Board
or its designee, be accepted towards the fulfiliment of this condition if the program would have
been approved by the Board or its designee had the program been taken after the effective date of
this Decision.

Respondent shall submit a certification of successful completion 1o the Board or its
designee not later than 15 calendar days after successfully completing the program or not later
than 15 calendar days after the cffective date of the Decision, whichever is latel

4, NOTIFICATION. Within seven days of the effective date of thts Dec:sxon,
Respondent shall provide a true copy of this Decision and Accusation to the Chief of Statf-or the
Chief Executive Officer at every hospital where privileges or membership are extended to
Respondent, at any other facility Wherc Respondent engages in the practice of mediciné,
including all physician and locum tenens registries or other si_xﬁilar agencies, and to the Chief
Executive Officer at every insurance carrier which extends malpractice insurance coverage to
Respondent. Respondent shall submit prbof of compliance to the Board or its designee within 15
calendar days. o |

This condition shall apply to any change(s) in hospitals, other facilities or insurance carﬁer.

5. OBEY ALL LAWS. Respondent shall obey all federal, state and local }aws, all rules
governing the practice of medicine in California and remain in full compliance with any court
ordered criminal probation, payments, and other or ders. '

6. QQAB_’I_‘E_&L__‘_Y_D_EQ_L_A__IM’I‘ION_ Respondent shall submit quarterly declarations
under penalty of petjury on forms provided by the Board, stating whether there has been
compliance with all the conditions of probation.

Respondent shall submit quarterly declarations not later than 10 calendar days afler the end

of the preceding quarter.

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (11-2011-218741)
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" 7. GENERAL PROBATION REQUIREMENTS.

Complinnce with Probation Unit

Respondent shall comply with the Board’s probation unit and all terms and conditions of

’

this Decision. . .

Address Changpes .

Respondent shall, at all times, keep the Board informed of Respondent’s business and
residence addresses, email address (if availablc), and telephone number. Changes of such
addresses s_hall be immediately comimunicated in writing to the Board or its designee, Underno -
circumstances shall a post 6fﬁce box serve as an address of record, except as al]owéd by Business
and Professions Code scction 2021(b).

Place of Practice

Respondent shall not engage in the practice of medicine in Respondent’s or patient’s place

. of residence, unless the patient resides in a skilled nursing facility or other similar licensed

facility.

License Renewal

Respondent shall maintain a current and renewed California physician’s and surgeon’s

license.

Travel or Residence Quiside California

Respondent shall itrlmxediatel y inform the Board or its designee, in writing, of travel to any -
arens outside the jurisdiction of Californin which lasts, or is contemnplated to last, more than thirty
calendar days. |

In the event Respondent should leave the State of California to rc;,side or to practice
Respondent shall notify the Board or its designee in writing 30 cz}lendax' days prior to the dates of

departure and retum.

8. INTERVIEW WITH THE BOARD OR ITS DESIGNEE. Respondent shall be

available in person upon request for interviews either at Respondent’s place of business or at the

probation unit office, with or without prior notice throughout the lerm of probation.

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (11-2011-218741}
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9. NON-PRACTICE WHILE ON PROBATION. Respondent shall notify the Board or

its designee in writing within 15 calendar days of any periods of non-practice lasting more than
30 calendar days and within 15 calendur days of Respondent’s return to practice, Non-practice is
defined as any period of time Respondent is not practicing medicir{e -in.Caliform'a as defined in
B'usinéss and Professions Code sections 2051 and 2052 for at least 40 hours in a calendar month
in direct patient care, clinical activity or teaching, or other activity as approved by the Board. All
time spent in an intensive training program. which has been. approved by _thc Board or iis designec
shall not be considered nonﬁaractibe. Practicing medicine in another state 6f the United States or
Federal jurisdiction while on probation with the medical licensing authority of that state or
juﬁsdict{on shall not be considered non-practice. A Board-ordered suspension of practice shall
not be considered as a period of non-practice. ‘

In the event Respondent's period of non-practice while on probation exceeds 18 calendar
months, Respondent shall successfully complete a clinical training program that meets the criteria
of Condition 18 of the current version of the Board’s “Manual of Model Di sciplinary Orders and
Disciplinary Guidelines™ prior to resuming the practice of medicine.

Respondcn.t’s period of non-pfactice while on probation shall not exceed two (2) years.

Periods of non-practice will not apply to the reduction of the probationary term. |

Periads of non-practice will relieve Respondent of the responsibility to co;nply with the

probationary terms and conditions with the exception of this condition and the following terms

| and conditions of probation: Obey All Laws; and General Probation Requirements.

10. ' COMPLETION OF PROBATION. Respondent shall comply with all financial

obligations (e.g., restitution, probation costs) not later than 120 caléndar days prior to the
completion of probatior;. Upon successful completion of prabation, Respondent’s cettificate shall
be fully restored. , .

11. VIOLATION OF PROBATION. Failure to fully comply with any term or condition
of probation is a violation of probation. If Respondent violates probation in any respect, the

Board, after giving Respondent notice and the opportunity to be héard, may revoke probation and

carry out the disciplinary order that was stayed. If an Accusation, or Petition to Revoke

7
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Probation, or an Interim Suspension Order is filed against Respondent during probation, the '
Board shall have continuing jurisdiction until the matter is final, and the period of probation shall |
be extended until the matter is final.

12 LICENSE SURRENDER. Following the effective date of this Decision, if
Respondent céases practicing due to retirement or health reasons or is otherwise unable to satisfy.
the terms and conditions of probation, Respondent may request (o surrender his or her license.
The Board reserves the right to evaluate Respondent’s request'and to exercise its discretion in
detennining whether or not to grant the request, or to take im(y other actidn deemed appropriate
and reasonable under the circumstances, Upoen formal acceptance of the surrender, Respondent
shall within 15 calendar days deliver Respondent’s wallet and wall certificate to the Board or its
designee and Respondent shall no longer practice l;xedicine. Respondent will no longer be subject
to the terms and conditioxis of probation, If ReSpéndenl re-applies for a medical license, the
application shall be treated as a petition for reinstatement of a revoked certificate,

13, PROBATION MONITORING COSTS. Respondent shall pay the costs associated

with probation monitoring each and every year of probation, as désignated by the Board, which
may be adjusted on an annual basis. Such cats shall be payabie to t_he Medical Board of
California and delivered to the Board or its designee no later than January 31 of each calendar
year,
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' ACCEP TAI\iéE
I have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and hnve fully
discussed it with my attorney, Thomas R. Bradford, Esy. | understand the stipulation and the
effect it will have on my Physician's and Surgeon's Ceitificate. 1 enter into this Stipulated

Settlement and Disciplinary Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be

| bound by the Decision and Order of the Medical Board 'of California.

DATED: %/4,//2..'» | QWWM—)
' JAMESALFRED LEMYS, M.D.
Respondent

I have read and fully discussed with Respondent James Alfred Lemus, M.D. the terms and

conditions and other matters coptiined in Theabove Stipufatgd Settlement and Disciplinary Order.

I approve its form and content.

DATED: /(/¢ y

111
/1
/11
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ENDORSEMENT

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully

submitted for consideration by the Medical Board of California of the Department of Consumer

Respectfully submirted,

KaMaLa D. HARRIS

Attorney General of California
Rom?? McKm BELL

Supef smg Deputy Attomey General

L) 2
Emx
PEG DFORD TARWA
Dcputy Attomey General
Attorneys for Complainant

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT (11-2011-218741)
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STATE ";')F.LED
F CALIFORNIA
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA -

KAMALA D, HARRIS SACRAMENTO_ Y41, © 2
Atiorney General of California B\'ai;ﬁm}ﬁ&%
ROBERT MCKiM BELL : v
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
PEGGIE BRADFORD TARWATER
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No, 169127 -
Califorhia Departmen of Justice

300 South Spring Street, Suite 1702

Los Angeles, CA 90013

Telephone: (213) 620-6068

Facsimile: (213) 897-9395
Atrorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
MEDICAL BOARD OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matier of the Accusation Against: Case No. 11-2011-218741
JAMES ALFRED LEMUS, M.D.
5020 East Washinglon Boulevard
City of Commerce, California 90040 ‘ ACCUSATION
Physician's and Surgeon's Certificate No. G L
42274,

' L
Respondent.
\ -
Complainant alleges:
' PARTIES

A .
1. Linda K. Whitoey (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity

as the Excculive Director of the Medical Board of California, Department of Consumer Affairs
(Board). \ '

2. On or about July 1, 1980, the Medical Board of California issued Physician's and
Surgeoh's Centificale number G 42274 to James Alfred Lemus, M.D. (Respondent). The
Physician's and Surgeon's Cerlificate was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the

charges brought herein and will expire on September 30, 2013, unless renewed.

111 -

Accusuation
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JURISDICTION
3. This Accusation is brought before the Board under the authority of the following
laws.

4. Busixiess and Professions Code sccliqn 2227" provides that a licensee wﬁo is found
guilly under the Médical Practice Act may have his or her license revoked, suspended for a period
not 10 exceed one year, pluced on probation and required 10 pay the costs of probation monitoring,
or such other action taken in relation to discipline as (he Board deems proper.

-5.  Section 2234 of the Code states:

"The board shull take action against any licensee who is churged with uﬁprofcssional

conduct. In addition to other provisions of this article, unprofessional conduct includes, but is not

limited 10, the following:
“(a) ‘Violating or atlempting (o violate, directly or indirectly, assisting in or abetting the
violation of, or conspiring (o violate any provision of this chapler [Chapter 5, the Medical

Practice Adt).

"(e) The commission of any act involving dishonesty or corruption which is substgntially
relaled to the qualifica'tions, functions, or duties of a physician and surgeon. | '
"(f) Any 'adion or conduct which would have warranted the denial of a certificate.”
"6, Section 2236 of the Code states:
“(a) The conviction of any offense substantially related to the qualifications, functibns, or
duties of a physician and surgeon constitules unprofessional conduct within lhe meaning of this
chapter [Chapler 5, the Mcdiéal Practice Act]. The record of conviclion shatl be conclusive

evidence only of the fact that the conviclion occurred.

TAll stalutofy references are 1o Lhe Business and Professions Code, unless otherwise
indicated.

| ]
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“(d)s A plen or verdict of guilty or a conviction after a plea of nolo coniendere ig deemed o
be u conviclion within the meaning of lln.s section and Section 2236.1. The ysecord of mnvnctmn
ghall be conclusive evidence of the fact thal the conviction ocevrred.”

7. Cualilornia Code of Regulations, litle 16, section 1360, slales:

“For the purposes of denial, suspension or revocation of a license, cerlificate or permil
pursuant (o Division 1.5 (commc.ncm;, r with Scetion 475) of the code, a crime or act shall be
considered 1o be substantially related to the quuhfxcauons functions or duties of a person holding
a license, certificate or permit under the Medical Prucuce Act if to a substantial degree it
evidences present or polential unfitness of & person holding a license, cgruﬁcaw or permil (o
perform the functions authorized by the license, certificate or permit in 4 manner consistent with
the public health, safety or welfare. Such crimes or acts shall inclnde but not be limited to the
following: Violating or attempting to violate, directly‘or indirectly, or assisting in or abetting the
vxolauon of, or conspiring lo violate any provision of the Medical Prachce Acl” |

8. Titie 26, United States Code, section 7201 provides:

“Any person who willfully attempts in any manuer to evade or defeat any 1ax imposed by
this title or the payment thereof shall, in addition to other per{allies provided By law, be guilty of a
felony and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined not more than $100,000 ($500, 000 in the case
of a corporation), or imprisoned not more than 5 years; or bolh, logether with the costs of
prosecution.”

CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
' {Conviction of a Crime)

9, Reﬂpondenl is subject (o disciplinary action under seclion 2227, 2234, and 2236 and
California Code of chuldhons, litle 16, section 1360, in thul he was ‘convicled of atlempling lo
evade or defeal payim:nf of incomie tax in viotation of 26 United States Code section 7201, The
circumstances are as follows: '

10. During the 2003 tax year, Respondent owned and operated Lemus Medical Clinic
(LMC), in Commerce, California. During that time petiod. LMC provided physicals and drug

~ ' 3
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testing to truck drivers as required by the Department of Trunsportation. Respondent required
mast of those ruck drivers to pay lor the testing in cush, In 2003, Respondent received

approximately $68,663 in cash from perfurming these drug tests. Howeéver, in order 1o conceal

the, cash receipts from the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS™). Respondent knowingly failed to

report that cash to the IRS.

11. Responden! knew tha he had received substantial taxable income: duriné 2003, |
numely $88,663 in cash, and that he was required to file u United States Individual Tux Return,
Form 1040, reporting his tuxable income, including the cash he received, and pay the tdxes that
were due. Respondent willfully attempted to evade and defent the assessment and puyment of
such tax by willfully failing to report the cash he received on his 2003 Federal Income Tax
Return.

12..- Respondent acted for the purpose of ew;ding his duties under the tax laws and not as a

result of accident or negligence. Respondent’s actions resulted in an additional tax due and

 owing to the IRS of $20,626 for 2003.

13. On or about March 2, 2011, in United States District Court, Central District of
California, Case Number CR11-00181-MMM, an Information was filed cheirging Respondent

with attempting to evade or defeat payment of income tax in violation of 26 Uniled States Code

>

.section 7201.

14. On or about March 2, 2011, a plea agreement was filed in which Respondent pled
guilty to the charge as set forth in the Information.

15. On or about October 24, 2011, Respondent was senienced. Tﬁe lerthis and condilions
included the following: bne-month commitment fo the Bureau of Prisons; sqpervised release for a
period of three years, with nine months in a home detention program; filing and payment of tuxes |
owed {or 2003 through 2007; and additional fees and penalties. |

16. Respondent’s conduct, as set forth in paragraphs 9 through 15 constitutes the |
conviction of a crime, substantially related o the qualifi cations, functions or duties of a physician,

pursuant to section 2236 of the Code. Therefore cause for discipline exists.

Aceuswiion
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 DATED:  July 24, 2012

PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainuant requests thal # hearing be held m; the matlers herein atleged,
and that following the hearing, the Medical Board of Culifurnia issue s decision:

1, Revoking or suspending Physician's and Surgeon's Certificale Number G 42.274,‘
issned 1o James Alfred Lemus, M.D.; |

2. Revoking, suspending or denying approval of his authority o supervise physician’s
agsistants, pursuan( Lo section 3527 of the Code;

3, If he is placed on probation, ordering him Lo pay the Medical Board of California the
cosls of probation monioring; A '

"4,  Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

LINDA K. WHITNE
Executive Direclor
Medical Board of £alifornia
Department of Gonsumer Affairs
State of California

Complainait

LA2012604115
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